Public Document Pack

Agenda Reports & Other Papers
Presented to the
Meeting of the
Public Health and Prevention Cabinet Panel
on
Thursday, 6 September 2018

1.

Agenda

1 - 86

2.

Supplementary Document-Health Risk Behaviours Presentation

87 - 94

Agenda

AGENDA for a meeting of the PUBLIC HEALTH AND PREVENTION CABINET
PANEL in COMMITTEE ROOM B at County Hall, Hertford on THURSDAY, 6
SEPTEMBER 2018 at 10.00AM
___________________________________________________________________
MEMBERS OF THE PANEL (13) (Quorum 3)
A P Brewster, L A Chesterman, C Clapper, J Billing (substituting for M A Eames-Petersen),
S Gordon, N A Hollinghurst, M B J Mills-Bishop, N A Quinton, R M Roberts (Chairman), A F
Rowlands, A Stevenson, A D Williams (Vice Chairman), W J Wyatt-Lowe
Meetings of the Cabinet Panel are open to the public (this includes the press) and
attendance is welcomed. However, there may be occasions when the public are excluded
from the meeting for particular items of business. Any such items are taken at the end of
the public part of the meeting and are listed under “Part II (‘closed’) agenda”.
Committee Room B is fitted with an audio system to assist those with hearing
impairment. Anyone who wishes to use this should contact main (front) reception.
Members are reminded that all equalities implications and equalities
impact assessments undertaken in relation to any matter on this agenda must be
rigorously considered prior to any decision being reached on that matter.
Members are reminded that:
(1)

if they consider that they have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any matter
to be considered at the meeting they must declare that interest and must not
participate in or vote on that matter unless a dispensation has been granted
by the Standards Committee;

(2)

if they consider that they have a Declarable Interest (as defined in paragraph
5.3 of the Code of Conduct for Members) in any matter to be considered at
the meeting they must declare the existence and nature of that interest. If a
member has a Declarable Interest they should consider whether they should
participate in consideration of the matter and vote on it.

Agenda Pack Page 1
1

PART I (PUBLIC) AGENDA
1.

MINUTES
To note the Minutes of the meeting held on 26 June 2018.

2.

PUBLIC PETITIONS
The opportunity for any member of the public, being resident in Hertfordshire,
to present a petition relating to a matter with which the Council is concerned,
which is relevant to the remit of this Cabinet Panel and which contains
signatories who are either resident in or who work in Hertfordshire.
Members of the public who are considering raising an issue of concern via a
petition are advised to contact their local member of the Council. The
Council's arrangements for the receipt of petitions are set out in Annex 22 Petitions Scheme of the Constitution.
If you have any queries about the procedure please contact Theresa Baker,
by telephone on 01992 556545 or by e-mail to
theresa.baker@hertfordshire.gov.uk
At the time of the publication of this agenda no notices of petitions have been
received.

3.

HEALTH RISK BEHAVIOURS IN CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE
Report of the Director of Public Health

4.

PUBLIC HEALTH QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE REPORT – Q1 2018/19
Report of the Director of Public Health

5.

OVERVIEW OF EMPLOYEE SICKNESS ABSENCE AND WELLBEING
Report of the Director of Resources

6.

OTHER PART I BUSINESS
Such Part I (public) business which, if the Chairman agrees, is of sufficient
urgency to warrant consideration.

PART II (‘CLOSED’) AGENDA
EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
There are no items of Part II business on this agenda. If Part II business is notified the
Chairman will move:“That under Section 100(A) (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press and public
be excluded from the meeting for the following item/s of business on the grounds that
it/they involve/s the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph/s

Agenda Pack Page 2

2

……. of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the said Act and the public interest in maintaining the
exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.”
If you require further information about this agenda please contact
Theresa Baker, Democratic Services, on telephone no 01992 556545 or email
theresa.baker@hertfordshire.gov.uk.
Agenda documents are also available on the internet at:
https://democracy.hertfordshire.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1

Agenda Pack Page 3
3

This page is intentionally left blank

To: All Members of the Public
Health and Prevention Cabinet
Panel, Chief Executive, Chief
Officers, All officers named for
‘actions’

From:
Legal, Democratic & Statutory Services
Ask for: Stephanie Tarrant
Ext:
25481

PUBLIC HEALTH AND PREVENTION CABINET PANEL
26 JUNE 2018 AT 10:00AM
ATTENDANCE
MEMBERS OF THE PANEL
A P Brewster, L A Chesterman, C Clapper, M A Eames-Petersen, S Gordon, N A Hollinghurst,
M B J Mills-Bishop, N A Quinton, R M Roberts (Chairman), A F Rowlands, A Stevenson, A D
Williams (Vice-Chairman), W J Wyatt-Lowe
Upon consideration of the agenda for the Public Health and Prevention Cabinet Panel
meeting on 26 June 2018 as circulated, copy annexed, conclusions were reached and
are recorded below:
PART I (‘OPEN’) BUSINESS
1.

MEMBERSHIP AND REMIT OF THE PANEL

1.1

The Public Health and Prevention Cabinet Panel noted the
Membership and Remit of the Panel.

2.

MINUTES

2.1

The Minutes of the Cabinet Panel meeting held on 10 May 2018
were noted.

3.

PUBLIC PETITIONS

3.1

There were no public petitions.

4.

HEALTHY WEIGHT IN HERTFORDSHIRE
[Officer contact: Sue Matthews, Consultant in Public Health –
Children & Young People (Tel: 01992 556 125), Piers Simey,
Consultant in Public Health – Adults health improvement (Tel:
01438 844175); Jen Beer, Health Improvement Lead – Children &
Young People (Tel: 01438 843309);Sue Beck, Head of Service –
Children & Young People (Tel: 01438 845914); Maneka Kandola,
Health Improvement Lead – Lifestyle (Tel: 01438 844662)]

Agenda Pack Page 5

ACTION

1

4.1

Members considered a report and a supplementary presentation on
healthy weight in Hertfordshire amount adults and young people.
The presentation can be viewed using the following link: Healthy
Weight in Hertfordshire Presentation.

4.2

The Panel acknowledged that the government’s report ‘Childhood
obesity: a plan for action’, chapter 2 had been published on the
previous day, 25 June 2018 and that an action had been updated
from the report in light of the plan.

4.3

Members discussed the challenges highlighted within the report
and noted that it was key for the Local Authority and NHS to work
closely to address these. It was noted that the vision within the
Sustainability and Transformation Plan (STP) was a shift from
treating obesity to prevention and that a whole system approach
was required.

4.4

The Panel discussed how a whole system approach could be used
to address underlying sociological factors and improve motivation.
It was noted that as a partnership all of the factors to being
healthy/unhealthy needed to be identified, with a plan created to
address unhealthy factors. It was noted that some factors were in
the gift of the County Council e.g. healthy eating in schools, some
in the gift of the NHS e.g. clinical variation, some in the gift of
Central Government e.g. the Obesity Plan and some in the gift of
employers and local communities. Members discussed the use of
Health Walks and community motivation as a tool to getting people
to be more active.

4.5

Members noted that obesity had increased over the past 20 years
and that after decades of pursuing low fat food it was now about
finding the right balance and educating people. The book ‘Food:
WTF Should I Eat?: The no-nonsense guide to achieving optimal
weight and lifelong health’ by Mark Hyman, was noted as providing
a balanced approach to diet.

4.6

Members noted that £6.1 billion was being spent across the country
on obesity, with only a small part being used to address prevention.
Discussions took place with regard to agreeing specific objectives
to move forward and how to get more money into the system.
Members heard that Herts Valleys CCG had begun to invest more
money in prevention with GPs inviting those at risk of developing
weight related illnesses to special in-house education sessions to
develop wellbeing plans. Members discussed the options to
promote healthy eating within the County Council’s own food
outlets.

4.7

The Panel discussed the initiatives within schools to promote a
healthy lifestyle. Members noted the Daily Mile initiative and the
benefits. Officers to supply information on the Daily Mile to

S. Matthews

2
CHAIRMAN’S
INITIALS
…………….

Agenda Pack Page 6

Members. In addition, it was noted that Physical Education (PE)
was also now part of the Ofsted review. Members discussed sports
being accessible to all children within schools and not only
competitively.
4.8

In response to a Member question on discrepancy between
national data and NHS data, the Panel heard that there was a
national issue around the data collected for obesity. It was advised
that the Quality and Outcomes Framework (QOF) data only
identified people that the GP had input data for and therefore was
not reliable. The Panel discussed investing in proper data and the
notion of sharing information better to get a better picture.

4.9

A Hertsmere STP mapping exercise was discussed. This exercise
included health partners and sought to identify solutions for
partners working together, and was noted as a good example of
partnership working. It was noted that as part of the STP, all
partners should have one pot of money to work from and aim to
transform the way in which the money was spent.

4.10

The Panel discussed initiatives used by other Local Authorities e.g.
recycling bikes in Newham and noted that more could be done to
encourage families to be active together. Members heard that
Finland used to have the worse rate for heart disease but over the
past 30 years had reduced this due to eradicating Finnish
delicacies from diets and strong political intervention. It was noted
that political leadership with a long term plan and realigned funding
was required in Hertfordshire.
Conclusions:

4.11



Panel considered and commented on the report and the themes
it addressed, as summarised above.



Panel considered and supported the following priorities for
action proposed by the Director of Public Health:
1. That support provided to residents to maintain a healthy
weight should remain a key priority for the County Council
and requires maintained/increased investment across the
system.
2. Endorse and advocate for the implementation of the
recommendations from the recent House of Commons
Health Select Committee report on Childhood Obesity1
(Summary recommendations in Appendix 3).

https://www.parliament.uk/business/committees/committees-a-z/commons-select/health-and-social-carecommittee/inquiries/parliament-2017/childhood-obesity-inquiry-17-19/
1

3
CHAIRMAN’S
INITIALS
…………….

Agenda Pack Page 7

3. Continue to work with the NHS to ensure that services for
those living with obesity are joined up, delivered through a
pathway, available in the community and effective.
4. Progress initiatives to promote healthy environments in line
with the recent Local Government Association report
5. Endorse the whole systems approach to obesity in
Hertfordshire, and support broader engagement
5.

SUICIDE PREVENTION IN HERTFORDSHIRE
[Officer Contact: Nathan Davies, Public Health Project Manager
(Tel 01438 843516), Piers Simey, Consultant in Public Health
(Tel 01438 844175)]

5.1

The Panel received a report and presentation which set out data
and information on the suicide rate in Hertfordshire, age groups
affected and leading risk factors/reasons and which highlighted the
progress made on developing and delivering Hertfordshire’s
Suicide Prevention Plan.

5.2

Members heard that there had been 56 deaths from suicide
identified in 2015/16 and of these 80% were men. Members
welcomed commitment from partners in a shared approach and
having a suicide prevention strategy.

5.3

The Panel discussed what could be done to mitigate socioeconomic factors and noted that worryingly 82% of those who had
committed suicide had discussed their mental health with their GP
in the month before their death, yet 59% were not known to mental
health services. Members queried if any of the 82% had been
directly referred to a mental health service and discussed if there
was a better referral method for those patients that presented with
mental health concerns. Members welcomed a follow up report
which considered socio-economic factors and age data at a
regional level. This was to be provided within 6-8 months as more
information was to be made available following the suicide audit.

5.4

Members commented on whether GPs were sufficiently trained to
spot the signs of someone contemplating suicide and it was
advised that over 200 GP staff had been trained with the aim to
rollout the training programme to the wider vital professional group.
It was noted that an outcome of the scrutiny into mental health was
to create multidisciplinary teams and a short referral process.

5.5

Members noted that as detailed at 6.1 of the report, there had not
been any additional resources to develop Hertfordshire’s Suicide
Prevention Plan. Only 4% of national health funding was spent on
mental health.

J. McManus

4
CHAIRMAN’S
INITIALS
…………….

Agenda Pack Page 8

5.6

The Panel welcomed the equalities references within the report and
noted the other initiatives that fed into suicide prevention at 4.13 of
the report. Members acknowledged that bullying had not been
mentioned in the report as a trigger for suicide and in addition
noted that sexual orientation statistics were not captured.

5.7

The Panel acknowledged that there was a group of volunteers in
St. Albans who created a social prescribing service and played a
good role in the prevention of suicide. It was noted that whilst social
prescribing was working well and was on the increase, there was a
question around sustainability. Social prescribing was to be
reviewed as part of the Prevention Programme.
Conclusions:

5.8

Panel considered and commented on the report and the current
approach to suicide prevention in Hertfordshire, as summarised
above.

6.

PUBLIC HEALTH QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE REPORT – Q4
2017/18
[Officer Contact: David Conrad, Consultant in Public Health
(Evidence & Intelligence) (Tel: 01992 555391); Will Yuill, Public
Health Analyst (Tel: 01992 555127)]

6.1

The Panel received a report which detailed the quarterly
performance for Public Health and an accompanying presentation.
The full report and presentation can be viewed here:
Presentation- Public Health Performance for Q4 2017-18

6.2

Members noted that whilst life expectancy was increasing it was
also important to ensure that quality of life continued to increase as
people lived longer. The criterion for quality of life was discussed
and it was noted that a future report focussing on quality of life
would be appropriate.

6.3

6.4

In response to a Member question regarding how outcomes of the
Beezee Families children’s healthy weight intervention were
measured, Members heard that the service’s impact on nutrition
and exercise was self-reported by means of a post-intervention
questionnaire. It was advised that the response rate to the
questionnaire was not known; however officers could try and
establish it.

J. McManus

D. Conrad

Members considered whether the movement of medical services
from a town had an impact on residents feeling of wellness and
discussed the impact of being further away from a major hospital
may impact on people feeling reassured.
5

CHAIRMAN’S
INITIALS
…………….

Agenda Pack Page 9

6.5

Members noted that report did not cover mental health and it was
advised that the performance report was divided into four sections,
with the current report focussing on services delivered. It was
advised that mental health data was shared regularly in other
forums. Members would welcome a report that focussed on mental
health.

J. McManus

Recommendation
6.6

The Panel discussed and noted the content of the Public Health
Quarterly Performance Report for Q4 2017/18 and the
accompanying presentation (Appendix 2).

7.

OTHER PART I BUSINESS

7.1

There was no other Part I business.

KATHRYN PETTITT
CHIEF LEGAL OFFICER

CHAIRMAN

6
CHAIRMAN’S
INITIALS
…………….

Agenda Pack Page 10

HERTFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Agenda Item No.

PUBLIC HEALTH AND PREVENTION
CABINET PANEL
6 SEPTEMBER 2018 AT 10.00 AM

3

HEALTH RISK BEHAVIOURS IN CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE
Report of the Director of Public Health
Authors: Sue Matthews, Consultant in Public Health – Children & Young People
(Tel: 01992 556 125);
Jen Beer, Health Improvement Lead – Children & Young People
(Tel: 01438 843309);
Rob Bacon, Health Improvement Lead for Sexual Health (Tel: 01438 844135);
Liz Fisher, Head of Provider Services (Tel: 01442 453633);
Sue Beck, Head of Service – Children & Young People (Tel: 01438 845914).
Executive Member: -

1.

Richard Roberts, Public Health and Prevention

Purpose of report

1.1 This Report:  Describes current trends for health risk behaviours among young
people within Hertfordshire
 Summarises the evidence relating to the prevention of health risk
behaviours
 Sets out the public health approach to address health risk behaviours
among young people in Hertfordshire.
2.

Summary

2.1

Health risk behaviours have been defined as behaviours which
‘potentially expose people to harm, or significant risk of harm which will
prevent them reaching their potential, or damage their health and
wellbeing’ and include substance misuse (drugs, alcohol and smoking)
and risky sexual activity.

Agenda Pack Page 11

1

2.2

Adolescence is a period during which risk-taking, including health risk
behaviours, increases sharply, with potential long-term effects on health
and wellbeing.

2.3

The evidence1 suggests a slow and steady decline in risk behaviours and
negative outcomes, such as drinking; drug use; smoking and teenage
pregnancy. However, whilst officers are aware that risky behaviours are
in decline overall for young people, it is unclear if the same can be said
for vulnerable within this cohort as some evidence2 indicates increasing
severity and complexity of need among some vulnerable young people.

2.4

The apparent increase in children and young people suffering from poor
emotional health, particularly in relation to self-harm which is a risky
behaviour usually undertaken by someone to cope with or express
emotional distress or discomfort, is a growing concern for officers. This
reinforces the importance of the public health role in promoting positive
mental health among children and young people

3.

Recommendation/s

3.1 Panel is asked to:
 consider and comment on the report and the themes it addresses.
 support the proposed approach to addressing health risk behaviours
among young people within Hertfordshire
 note and endorse the Director of Public Health’s intention to ask the
Children Services Panel and Health and Wellbeing Board consider this
report as part of how we support the delivery of the new Hertfordshire’s
Plan for Children and Young People.
4.

Background

4.1 The Health and Wellbeing Strategy seeks to ensure that children and
young people get the best outcomes possible for their lives. The County
Council has recently published the Hertfordshire’s Plan for Children and
Young People with its focus on outcomes to ensure that the needs and
priorities of the county’s children and young people are effectively met.
4.2 There is a need to work as a multi-partner system to reduce, prevent and
respond to health risk behaviours. Whilst this paper provides an initial
public health focused view, it is intended that Public Health and Children’s
Services alongside other partners will be undertaking a joint piece of work
Horizon Scanning Programme Team (2014). Risk behaviours and negative outcomes.
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/45216
9/data_pack_risk_behaviours_and_negative_outcomes.pdf
2 Determinants of risky behaviour in adolescence: Evidence from the UK (ESRC, 2018).
1

Agenda Pack Page 12

2

to map services and priorities relating to health for young people
(including health risk behaviours). This should provide further information
to support wider system wide development and collaborative working.
4.3 The Public Health approach to reducing risky behaviours focuses on
activities that will prevent all health risk behaviours and promote positive
mental health, through building coping strategies and resilience. This
approach enables officers to develop consistent and clear messages for
schools and other young people focused agencies, which apply to all risk
behaviours. A summary of work undertaken to prevent health risk
behaviours is summarised in table 1. Public Health also commissions the
Health-Related Behaviour Questionnaire which provides insight on the
health behaviours of children in Hertfordshire primary and secondary
schools. This, alongside other sources of information, including a needs’
assessment conducted by the School Nursing Service, is used to inform
local priorities and commissioning decisions for children and young
people in Hertfordshire. Public Health work closely with relevant partner
agencies to ensure there is a joined up approach across the spectrum of
need.
4.4 Prevention of health risk behaviours will lead to significant improvements
in children and young people’s long term health and wellbeing into
adulthood.
5.

National evidence
Current trends

5.1 A review of national evidence suggests a slow and steady decline in risk
behaviours and negative outcomes, such as drinking, drug use, smoking
and teenage pregnancy. Some key trends for England are summarised
below3:
a. There has been a long-term decline in the prevalence of smoking since
the mid-1990s amongst 11-15 year olds in England. The Smoking,
Drinking and Drug Use among Young People in England survey (2016)
found that 7% of 15 year olds were regular cigarette smokers
compared to 8% at the time of the last survey in 2014. This continues
the longer-term decline seen since 2006, when 20% of 15 year olds
were regular smokers. The rate of child smoking experimentation
remains almost static with 19% of 11-15 year olds having smoked at
least once. This is slightly up from the 18% recorded in 2014, but much
lower than the 39% in 2006.
b. The use of electronic cigarettes in young people remains low, with only
11% of 11-15 year olds ever experimenting with an electronic cigarette,
which is that same as reported in 2014.

3

NHS Digital (2017). Smoking, Drinking and Drug Use Among Young People in England – 2016.

Agenda Pack Page 13

3

c. In 2016, 10% of pupils said they had drunk alcohol in the last week.
The percentage of young people aged 11-15 drinking at least once a
week has declined from 19% in 2003 to 5% in 2013 (no data for 2016).
The numbers of 16-24 year olds in Great Britain that drink heavily on a
single occasion has also declined. For males aged 16 – 24 years, the
proportion drinking more than 8 units on at least 1 day decreased from
32% to 22% between 2005 – 2012 and for females drinking more than
6 units has declined from 27% to 17% over the same period, although
the downwards trend has flattened out in the most recent years.
d. In 2016, 24% of pupils reported they had ever taken drugs. This
compares to 15% in 2014. Authors note that results for drug taking
from this survey should be treated with caution until the survey is
repeated in 2018.
e. Following a downward trend since the late 1990s, teenage (under 18)
conception rates in England and Wales are now at their lowest since
records began in 19694. The latest data that is available is for quarter
1, 2017 with teenage conception rates (conceptions per 1000 women
aged 15 -17 years) of 18.5. Hertfordshire has below the national rate
of 11.8. However, though data issues make comparison difficult
across countries, the UK still has one of the highest teenage birth rates
of any developed country5.
f. Young people in the UK experience the highest diagnosis rates of the
most common Sexually Transmitted Infections (STI’s) and this is likely
due to greater rates of partner change among 16 to 24 year old people.
Young women are more likely to be diagnosed with an STI than their
male counterparts; this may be due to a greater uptake of Chlamydia
screening through the National Chlamydia Screening Programme
(NCSP), which targets those aged 15 to 24 years, as well as
disassortative sexual mixing between younger women and older male
partners. Between 2016 and 2017, there was a large increase in
diagnoses of gonorrhoea (27%; from 8,887 to 11,261) and syphilis
(22%; from 228 to 278), however syphilis is still rarely diagnosed in
young people6.
5.2 While these are positive trends a number of caveats to the data described
above are noted.
a. While there is a decline in a number of health risk behaviours, they
remain high by international standards. For example, globally, ‘heavy
4

BMJ 2017;357:j1888

5

https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/livebirths/adhocs/00
5466livebirthswomenagedunder18andunder20per1000womenaged15to17and15to19ineu28countries200
42013and2014
6 PHE (2018). Sexually transmitted infections and screening for chlamydia in England, 2017
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/71396
2/hpr2018_AA-STIs_v5.pdf

Agenda Pack Page 14

4

episodic drinking’ by 15-19 year olds is higher in Europe than any other
region, and the UK has one of the highest rates in Europe.
b. Similarly, while recent trends in the UK show reductions in adolescent
substance misuse there is evidence that adolescents are using
substances in an increasingly risky way7. For example, decreases in
illicit drugs use appear largely due to downward trends in marijuana
use, whereas Class A drugs have seen an increase in adolescent and
young adult use since 1996.
c. Most data is based on information that has been self-reported. This
could impact education about the risk and consequences of such
behaviours, as fewer children and young people may detail their
participation in these when asked even though the survey is
anonymous.
d. Those most likely to be engaging in harmful risk behaviours are often
the most disengaged from public services and so the most difficult to
engage in research. For example, the Health Related Behaviour
Questionnaire undertaken in schools will not include those who are
regularly absent or excluded from school and may therefore
underestimate the problem.
e. Importantly, there is significant variation in behaviours and outcomes
amongst this generation of children and young people. Participation in
multiple risk behaviours is associated with a range of negative
outcomes such as low educational attainment, being bullied and
emotional health problems.
f. For many risk behaviours, there appears to be an evidence gap; whilst
we know that risk behaviours are in decline overall, we cannot be sure
if the same can be said for vulnerable groups of young people.
g. It is possible that an overall decline in risk behaviours masks different
trends for particular groups of children and young people, particularly
the most vulnerable. For example, while the numbers of children and
young people who drink has declined, among 15 year olds who report
drinking weekly, 83% of boys and 57 % of girls reported being drunk
more than 10 times during last 30 days8.

CPRU (2017. Helping young people say ‘no’: the prevalence of risk-taking
PSHE Association (2015). Current trends in health, wellbeing and risky behaviours amongst children
and young people: a synthesis of recent evidence.

7
8

Agenda Pack Page 15

5

6.

Hertfordshire data and trends

6.1 The Health-Related Behaviour Questionnaire is conducted every two
years in primary and secondary schools across the county, providing us
with health behaviour data on mental health, sexual health, healthy
lifestyles, and substance misuse. The questionnaire was last reported in
20169. The data provides useful trend data over time and also enables
Hertfordshire to compare itself to the wider England sample. The survey
is completed with pupils in years 5 and 6 (9 – 11 year olds) and years 8
and 10 (12 – 15 year olds).
6.2 The Health-Related Behaviour Questionnaire results have been used as
a benchmark and to inform services by a number of partners including
Tobacco Control, Performance and Improvement, County Community
Safety Unit, Early Intervention & Targeted Support, Hertfordshire Trading
Standards, Clinical Commissioning Groups, District Councils,
Hertfordshire Sports Partnership, TONIC: substance misuse review in
Herts, Letchworth Partnership of Schools and Herts for Learning.
6.3 Hertfordshire health behaviour trends broadly reflect national trends, with
Hertfordshire generally in line with national averages or reporting slightly
healthier behaviours. The Health-Related Behaviour Questionnaire data
does indicate however that Hertfordshire pupils:
 are more likely to worry about exams and tests than is seen in the
wider sample
 slightly fewer primary school children felt they had been told how to
stay safe online (85% compared with 88%)
 only one in three young people in Hertfordshire felt that their school
lessons on sex education were ‘quite’ or ‘very’ useful, compared with
almost half (44%) of the England sample
 a higher proportion of Hertfordshire young people report having drank
alcohol in the last 7 days than in the England sample, and fewer
Hertfordshire young people report never drinking. However, rates
have dropped significantly over time, with 32% having reported
drinking alcohol in the last 7 days in 2010, compared with 14% in 2016.
6.4 Below are some key findings from the Health-Related Behaviour
Questionnaire relating to drugs, smoking and alcohol. These findings
provide some useful insight into drug use among school age children and
where they obtain their information on these matters.
 10% of Year 6 pupils said that they were ‘fairly sure’ or ‘certain’ that
they knew someone personally who used drugs (not as medicines).
23% of Year 8 and 54% of Year 10 school pupils said the same.
9

https://www.hertshealthevidence.org/documents/thematic/hrbs-hertfordshire-briefing-2016.pdf

Agenda Pack Page 16

6

 8% of pupils said that they had taken at least one of the drugs listed in
the questionnaire compared with 6% of the wider sample across
England.
 14% of pupils drank alcohol on at least one day in the week before the
survey. 4% of pupils said that they got drunk on at least one day in the
last week (Year 8 and Year 10)
 68% of pupils reported that they would like their parents to talk to them
about drugs while 36% said they would like it to come from their
teachers (year 5-6). The public health nursing service have dedicated
websites for parents covering topics such as these to improve parents
understanding of risk behaviours affecting young people
 36% of pupils said that their drugs lessons at school were ‘quite’ or
‘very useful’ compared with 51% of the wider sample. Findings of the
survey are shared with schools to support curriculum development. A
dedicated ‘HealthforTeens’ website is also in place since this survey.
 23% of Hertfordshire pupils said that they have a parent or carer who
smokes compared with 33% of the wider sample (Year 8 and Year 10).
 Smoking rates are lower in Hertfordshire than in other areas, and the
number of Hertfordshire pupils that said they had tried smoking in the
past or smoke now has reduced from 34% in 2008 to 16% in 2016,
with only 6.6% of 15 year olds smoking occasionally or regularly and
76% of pupils said they had “never even taken a puff”. This has largely
been achieved through reducing smoking in the adult population and
through legislative measures such as increasing the legal age to
purchase tobacco from 16 to 18, removing access to tobacco through
vending machines, enforcement measures with retailers to prevent
sales to under 18, and removing tobacco advertising.
6.5 The survey also includes a section on risky sexual activity and knowledge
of sexual health services. The Health-Related Behaviour Questionnaire
provides useful intelligence on young people’s beliefs, current levels of
knowledge around STI’s and access to services to support health
promotion priorities. The 2016 survey showed:
 27% of pupils say they know where they can get condoms free of
charge (Year 8 and Year 10 ages 12 - 15) This compared with 50% of
the wider sample (Year 8 and Year 10 ages 12 - 15). Public Health
provides funding to YC to deliver sex and relationship education
programmes in youth settings. Correct and consistent condom use is
advocated to prevent the spread of STI and unplanned pregnancies. A
review of the Hertfordshire free condom scheme (C-CARD) resulted in
changes to the current model. Under the new scheme condoms will be
easier access in a range of locations. Early indicators show young
people accessing condoms, who had not done so under the previous
model.

Agenda Pack Page 17

7

 32% of pupils agreed that there is pressure on young people to have
sex and 82% of pupils agreed that it is ok to wait to have sex (Year 8
and Year 10 ages 12 - 15).
 18% agreed that most 16 year olds have not had sex, 48% weren’t
sure but 34% disagreed with this statement (Year 8 and Year 10 ages
12 - 15)
6.6 The Health-Related Behaviour Questionnaire includes a section on
mental health and self harm; an area which is highly relevant to health
risk behaviours. The 2016 survey showed that 81% of pupils said they
have never self-harmed. 10% said they had and 8% didn’t want to say.
17% of Year 10 girls self-harmed and 10% did not have any support. If
they told someone, most would talk to a friend (Year 8 and Year 10 ages
12 - 15). This information was used to inform the development of the selfharm toolkit for schools, and prevention is being enhanced through
extensive work with schools and other relevant partners to promote
healthy coping strategies.
6.7 It was noted earlier that online safety is important for several reasons and
closely connected with emotional wellbeing. The survey showed:
 88% of pupils said that they have been taught how to keep safe online
(Year 8 and Year 10 ages 12 - 15)
 22% of pupils said they had received a message on social media
which scared or upset them (Year 8 and Year 10 ages 12 - 15)
 12% of pupils said they have shared personal information e.g. address
or phone number online with someone they don’t know in real life
(Year 8 and Year 10 ages 12 - 15)
7.

New and emerging health risk behaviours

7.1 There has been a significant increase in the use of social media and
online gaming, particularly amongst children and young people in a short
space of time (referred to as ‘digital immersion’). There is clear
evidence10 that moderate use of technology is likely to have significant
positive impacts, improving wellbeing and social connectedness and is a
valuable source of information and support on key health and wellbeing
issues. However, for a small minority of young people who use
technology extensively, there could be a range of negative impacts. The
Health Related Behaviour Questionnaire indicated that 18% of secondary
school pupils had met someone in person that they had first met online,
and that the likelihood of this increased with age. Schools also report
Horizon Scanning Programme Team (2014). Risk behaviours and negative outcomes.
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/45216
9/data_pack_risk_behaviours_and_negative_outcomes.pdf
10 10

Agenda Pack Page 18

8

incidences of pupils sharing inappropriate images of themselves with a
trusted peer that then gets shared amongst the wider peer group, often
resulting in real emotional and long lasting distress for the person
involved. It can therefore be seen that internet safety is a relatively new
area of health behaviour risk, but the evidence in this area is still
emerging.
7.2 There is growing concern about an apparent increase in children and
young people suffering from poor emotional health11. For example, there
is some evidence which suggests that self-harm, often conceptualised as
a behaviour that people use to cope with emotional distress or discomfort,
is on the rise, particularly among teenage girls; around one third of 15
year old girls report having self-harmed. There is a shortage of reliable
data on the extent of self-harm amongst adolescents because self harm
is a behaviour that many people will keep hidden and not seek help for.
Hospital admissions for self-harm are estimated at 200,000 per year, but
this does not include the majority of young people that do not require
hospital treatment. Hertfordshire has a self-harm toolkit to support
relevant professionals, particularly those in schools. This includes
guidance documents, resources, and a care pathway.
8.

Public health approach for health risk behaviours among Children
and Young People in Hertfordshire

8.1 Public Health takes a population approach with a focus on reducing risks
and enhancing protection across the life course, taking a proportionate
approach across the three levels of prevention (see figure over page).
Table 1 summarises key areas of work led by the Public Health service to
prevent health risk behaviours. Public Health and Children’s Services will
be undertaking a joint piece of work to map services and priorities relating
to health for young people (including health risk behaviours). This should
provide further information to support wider system wide development
and collaborative working.

PSHE Association (2015). Current trends in health, wellbeing and risky behaviours amongst children
and young people: a synthesis of recent evidence. https://www.psheassociation.org.uk/system/files/Trends%20in%20young%20people%27s%20health%20and%20risky%2
0behaviours%202016%20-%20a%20briefing%20by%20the%20PSHE%20Association%2031-08-16.pdf
11

Agenda Pack Page 19

9

8.2 Primary prevention is a key objective for the prevention of risky
behaviours among children and young people, where we work with key
partners to prevent young people participating in health risk behaviours.
This work is mainly focused in a school setting and with partners who
work with young people, using evidence based tools and training of staff.
There is a clear cross over between mental health and health risk
behaviours so some of the related strands of work are also summarised.
8.3 Evidence12 shows that effective prevention programmes for young
people’s health risk behaviours focus on increasing self-confidence,
empowerment, increasing resilience, and giving them the skills to say ‘no’
to smoking, drinking and drugs, and the coping strategies to be able to
respond to their problems more effectively. This can be achieved through
developing basic life skills, such as problem-solving, personal decisionmaking and stress management13.
8.4 Public Health’s approach to reducing risky behaviours therefore focuses
on activities that will prevent all health risk behaviours and promote
positive mental health, through building coping strategies and resilience.
This enables officers to develop consistent and clear messages to
schools and other agencies which apply to the prevention of all risk
behaviours.
8.5 Public Health works closely with relevant services working with young
peoples (including YC Hertfordshire and the Youth Justice services) to
support young people who are undertaking health risk behaviours to
promote early detection, minimise harm and reduce the impact of these
risks. This is particularly important for vulnerable groups who will not
traditionally access mainstream services and education. Public Health
also has responsibility for the commissioning and delivery of treatment
services and wider prevention programmes relating to smoking, sexual

CPRU (2017. Helping young people say ‘no’: the prevalence of risk-taking
Behaviour and what works to reduce it. https://www.ucl.ac.uk/children-policyresearch/documents/publications/case-studies/Adolescence_ThemeV6.1_WEB_FINAL.pdf
13 https://www.ucl.ac.uk/children-policy-research/documents/publications/casestudies/Adolescence_ThemeV6.1_WEB_FINAL.pdf
12

Agenda Pack Page 20

10

health, drugs and alcohol and will ensure that they are tailored to meet
the needs of all age groups.
8.6 Officers work closely with relevant partner agencies to ensure there is a
joined up approach and explore areas for collaboration. For example,
officers have recently agreed some joint priorities with Children’s Services
on young people’s health and the mapping of health related services for
young people, which will include health promotion and prevention
initiatives. This will enable any gaps or priorities for improvement to be
identified.
8.7 Another key role of the Public Health team is to generate evidence and
information to help guide commissioning and policy decisions relating to
child health and wellbeing. To this end, the Health Related Behaviour
Questionnaire and Child Health profiles provide officers with health
behaviour data on mental health, sexual health, healthy eating, physical
activity, drugs, alcohol, smoking, and safety.
8.8 Members are asked to consider and support the proposed approach to
address health risk behaviours among young people in Hertfordshire.

Agenda Pack Page 21

11

Agenda Pack Page 22

12

Table 1 – summary of current and future areas of work on the prevention of health risk behaviours

Universal /
Primary
prevention

Agenda Pack Page 23

Examples of current approach
 Pastoral leads network for secondary schools enables earlier
identification of trends in relation to risky behaviours, and helps
to share key information and training opportunities
 Self-Harm toolkit, guidance and pathway
 Public Health commission, contribute to, or deliver several
projects designed to increase emotional wellbeing and
resilience. While it is not their primary aim, these projects
through their encouragement of healthy coping strategies,
should also contribute to a reduction in risky behaviours.
o Mindfulness Training for primary and secondary schools
o Self-harm training for school based professionals
o Mental Health First Aid Youth training
o Exam Stress information and training (pupils, parents
and professionals)
o Embed mental health and wellbeing into school and
community based physical activity projects to increase
understanding of how physical activity can benefit mental
health and wellbeing e.g. primary school athlete mentors
programme
 Commissioned by Public Health, YC Hertfordshire has provided
9,288 young people with sexual health knowledge and
information using a variety of methods, from one to one
individual needs based work in a YC Hertfordshire One Stop
Shop, delivery of planned group work sessions as part of a
larger project.
 Just Talk campaign launched January 2018 to encourage
teenage boys to feel more comfortable talking about their mental
health and wellbeing, and to recognise the value in seeking help

Future areas of work
 Primary school pastoral leads networks are being
established in each district in order to more
effectively identify emerging issues including risky
behaviours, and in order to share information more
effectively
 Public health and children’s services are working with
the Hertfordshire Safeguarding Children's Board on
the development of a Wellbeing strategy over the
next 6 months – this will cover self-harm in YP and
mental health
 Using evidence from HRBQ, pilot the ‘Re-fresh’
sexual health education programme to Yr12 & Yr13
students.
 Sexual health and relationships toolkit – A toolkit was
developed for schools in 2016. This will be updated
in 2018.
 Public Health plan to develop and implement a
programme of engagement with parents so that we
can positively/actively engage with families to
support parents with key public health priorities.
 Five ways to wellbeing promotion in primary schools
 Just Talk campaign will continue, being expanded to
include Special Schools and year 5 and 6 in primary
schools
 Social media activity (linked to Just Talk) to
showcase healthy coping strategies and positive
mental health messages
 Mental Health kitemark for schools

13

Agenda Pack Page 24

Examples of current approach
when needed
 Mental health and physical activity three year project – £250k
funding was secured from the Premier League, with match
funding of £25k from Public Health, and £25K from CAMHS
transformation monies. This project will look to support children
to build healthy coping strategies and gain a better
understanding of mental health and the support services and
information available. A universal preventative aspect of the
project will be delivered in schools to year 6, 7 and 9. And a
targeted aspect focussed on teenage boys and girls with early
signs of emerging mental health issues will be run in the
community. An extensive mental health awareness raising
training programme for sports coaches across Hertfordshire will
also help to skill up the wider workforce
 Anxiety toolkit – in recognition that anxiety is an increasingly
dominant issue for children and young people, a toolkit has been
developed for schools. This again will help young people to
develop healthier coping strategies for handling difficult
emotions.
 The public health nurse service 5- 18 (school nursing) support
young people who are referred into their service (or self- refer),
either offering them direct support or signposting them to other
support services where appropriate. The service also offers an
anonymous text messaging service for secondary school aged
children.
 Free condoms available in a range of youth settings and
pharmacies
 Short film clip produced to show what happens when you visit a
sexual health service in Hertfordshire. Available online and for
those working with young people.
 Promote and support all secondary schools, followed by all

Future areas of work
 Develop a more sustainable approach by training
Youth Connexions and school-based PHSE leads on
aspects of the ASSIST programme which can be
implemented without requiring a licence to do so.
 Consider the other lower cost/free interventions to
reduce smoking in the school aged population (e.g.
Young and Smokefree -interactive video; Smokefree
schools’ toolkit)

14

Agenda Pack Page 25

Secondary
prevention

Examples of current approach
primary schools, to become accredited as ‘Smokefree’ which
provides a toolkit for schools to assess themselves against
promotes parents and staff to quit smoking and provides support
for pupils found to be smoking.
 My Teen Brain (MTB)14 is a training module developed in
response to ongoing new research that evidences the
adolescent stage as being the next key stage of brain
development after the early years. This is for professionals and
parents, and recently is also being made available for young
people themselves

Future areas of work











14

Public Health provides funding to YC Hertfordshire to support
those working with vulnerable groups to provide one to one
support and advice on health risk behaviours
88 pharmacies accredited to deliver sexual health service (to
those under 25 years), which includes provision of Emergency
Contraception, Chlamydia Screening and free condoms.
In 2017, 8,370 young people aged 15-19 years accessed Sexual
Health Hertfordshire for sexual health and contraceptive
purposes.
Maintain young people friendly stop smoking services, but focus
on preventing the uptake of smoking, by reducing smoking in
adults who smoking, particularly in routine and manual groups
and referrals through routes where young people have support
to quit and stay quit.
Hertfordshire Health Improvement Service provides specialist
support to teenage mothers and their partners who are found to
be smoking.





Health Behaviour Training – training is being
developed for staff from services which support
vulnerable young people including Targeted Youth
Support, Children Looked After, Foster Carers,
Families First staff and third sector organisations.
The training will look at risky behaviours such as
sexual behaviours, and substance use. It will
encompass an online training resource open to all,
and a series of face to face training sessions.
Partnership work with HCC Children’s services to
agree key areas where they can collaborate to
improve outcomes for children, young people and
their families. For example, we have a Graduate
Management Trainee who will be undertaking some
work around mapping services and priorities relating
to health for young people; this will include health risk
behaviours.
Increase support to primary care to increase uptake
of Chlamydia testing amongst young people.

https://www.hertfordshire.gov.uk/extranets/early-help-professionals-area/my-teen-brain-for-schools.aspx#DynamicJumpMenuManager_1_Anchor_3

15

Examples of current approach

Agenda Pack Page 26

Tertiary
prevention



Future areas of work
 Plan and organise a ‘Sexual Health and Young
Peoples’ briefing event delivered to staff working with
young people; to include changes to Hertfordshire
condom distribution.
 Develop and deliver YC Hertfordshire Sexual health
training sessions to workforce delivering sexual
health interventions, including condom distribution.
 There is planned joined up work between Public
Health, Hertfordshire Health Improvement Service,
YC Hertfordshire Prince’s Trust to improve the health
of young people by focusing on identified need and
reducing risk behaviours.

Public Health provides funding to the Youth Justice team to train
those working with vulnerable groups to provide one to one
support and advice on health risk behaviours.

16

9.

Equality Impact Assessment

9.1

When considering proposals placed before Members it is important
that they are fully aware of, and have themselves rigorously
considered the equalities implications of the decision that they are
taking.

9.2

Rigorous consideration will ensure that proper appreciation of any
potential impact of that decision on the County Council’s statutory
obligations under the Public Sector Equality Duty. As a minimum, this
requires decision makers to read and carefully consider the content of
any Equalities Impact Assessment (EqIA) produced by officers.

9.3

The Equality Act 2010 requires the Council when exercising its
functions to have due regard to the need to (a) eliminate
discrimination, harassment, victimisation and other conduct prohibited
under the Act; (b) advance equality of opportunity between persons
who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not
share it and (c) foster good relations between persons who share a
relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it. The
protected characteristics under the Equality Act 2010 are age;
disability; gender reassignment; marriage and civil partnership;
pregnancy and maternity; race; religion and belief, sex and sexual
orientation.

9.4

An Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) has been undertaken and this
is annexed at Appendix [1]:

10.

Financial Implications

10.1

There are no financial implications to this plan at this stage, as the
current and future initiatives outlined in this report are funded through
the existing public health budget.

Agenda Pack Page 27

17

Appendix 1 EQIA

Agenda Pack Page 28

18

Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) Template

APPENDIX 1

EqIAs make services better for everyone and support value for money by getting services right first time.
EqIAs enable us to consider all the information about a service, policy or strategy
from an equalities perspective and then create an action plan to get the best
outcomes for staff and service-users1.They analyse how all our work as a council
might impact differently on different groups protected from discrimination by the
Equality Act 20102. They help us make good decisions and evidence how we have
reached them.3

Agenda Pack Page 29

An EqIA needs to be completed as a project starts to identify and consider
possible differential impacts on people and their lives, inform project planning and,
where appropriate, identify mitigating actions. It must be completed before any
decisions are made or policy agreed so that the EqIA informs that decision or
policy. It is also a live document; you should review and update it along with your
project plan throughout.

Full guidance notes to help you are embedded in this form – see the End Notes or hover the mouse over the numbered notes.
If your project/proposal relates primarily to staff – e.g. a restructure – there is a specific EqIA template for this here
Please share your initial EqIA with the equalities team, equalities@hertfordshire.gov.uk and the final/updated version at the end of the project.
Key EqIAs should be reviewed by the relevant Head of Service. Examples of EqIAs can be seen in the EqIA Library.

1.

Who is completing the EqIA4 and why is it being done?
Public health prevention of risky behaviours among children and young people

Names of those involved in completing the EqIA

Sue Matthews, Sue Beck, Jen Beer

Head of Service or Business Manager

Sue Matthews (children and young people)

Team/Department

Public Health

Lead officer contact details

Sue Matthews

Agenda Pack Page 30

Title of service / proposal / project / strategy /
procurement you are assessing5

Focus of EqIA – what are you assessing?

Stakeholders
Who will be affected?
Which protected characteristics is it most relevant to?
Consider the public, service users, partners, staff,
Members, etc

Adolescence is a period during which risk-taking increases sharply, with
potential long-term effects on health and wellbeing. This EQIA focusses on
health risk taking behaviour - defined as behaviours which ‘potentially expose
people to harm, or significant risk of harm which will prevent them reaching their
potential, or damage their health and wellbeing’ and Public Health’s approach
to addressing these.
Examples of health risk behaviours would include substance use (including
smoking, alcohol consumption, and illicit drug use and sexual risky activity
(including intimate sexual behaviour and underage sex, protected or otherwise).

Members of the public
Public sector partners and community/voluntary groups
Service users
Elected Members

2.
List of data sources used for this EqIA (include relevant national/local data, research, monitoring information,
service user feedback, complaints, audits, consultations, EqIAs from other projects or other local authorities, etc.)

A range of useful local data on our communities can be found on Herts Insight and on the Equalities Hub
Date

Helping young people say ‘no’: the prevalence of risk-taking
behaviour and what works to reduce it (CPRU, 2017) shows that
adolescents are much more likely to be in that high-risk core group if
they’re from a deprived background, and multiple risk behaviours are
more common in the white population.
https://www.ucl.ac.uk/children-policyresearch/documents/publications/casestudies/Adolescence_ThemeV6.1_WEB_FINAL.pdf

2017

Determinants of risky behaviour in adolescence: Evidence from the
UK (ESRC, 2018) shows that risk factors for participation in risk
taking behaviours include being male, living in a single headed
household, parental substance use, and puberty.

2018

Agenda Pack Page 31

Title and brief description
(of data, research or engagement – include hyperlinks if available)

Risky behaviours: prevalence in adolescence. Initial findings from the 2018
Millennium Cohort Study Age 14 Survey
Hertfordshire Health Related Behaviour Questionnaire (HRBQ) 2016
https://www.hertshealthevidence.org/documents/thematic/hrbshertfordshire-briefing-2016.pdf

2016

Gaps in data
Consider any gaps you need to address and
add any relevant actions to the action plan in
Section 4.
The evidence highlights that people who are
more deprived, male and those from a white
population are much more likely to engage in
multiple risky behaviours.
For many risk behaviours, there appears to
be an evidence gap; whilst we know that risk
behaviours are in decline overall, we cannot
be sure if the same can be said for
vulnerable groups of young people.
The data points to the need ensure that more
vulnerable groups are targeted effectively
with a focus on deprived and white
populations.

3.

Analysis and assessment: review of information, impact analysis and mitigating actions

Protected
characteristic
group

What do you know6?
What do people tell you7?
Summary of data and feedback about service users and the wider
community/ public





Agenda Pack Page 32
Age10

Who uses the service?
Who doesn’t and why?
Feedback/complaints?
Any differences in outcomes? Why?

What does this mean –
what are the potential
impacts of the
proposal(s)8?
- Consider positive and negative impacts
- On service users / the public
- AND, where relevant, staff*
* if your proposals relate mainly to a
staff restructure or reorganisation,
you should use the template here

What can you do9?
What reasonable mitigations to
reduce or avoid the impact can
you propose?
How will you
communicate/engage or provide
services differently to create a
‘level playing field’ – e.g.
consultation materials in easy
read or hold targeted
engagement events
If there is no current way of
mitigating any negative
impacts, clearly state that here
and consider other actions you
could take in the action plan in
section 4.

Determinants of risky behaviour in adolescence: Evidence from the
UK (ESRC, 2018) reports:
 the age of first participation in risky behaviours, for alcohol and
smoking (no data available for other outcomes). Amongst those
who ever tried alcohol, 17% did so before age 12, and the
remainder since age 12. Males are more likely to have tried at a
younger age than females, with just under 20% having tried
before age 12, compared to around 13% of females. For
smoking, just under 15% tried it before age 12, with the
remainder since then. Although males are more likely than
females to have tried at a younger age, at 16.7% versus 13%,
this gender difference is not statistically significant. Finally, for
those who had first tried smoking at age 11 or before, 25% said
that they were regular smokers by age 14. This is compared to
those who had tried their first cigarette age 12-14, of whom
15% reported being regular smokers at age 14. No evidence
that young people are using electronic cigarettes are a gateway
into smoking.
 substance use (binge drinking, whether ever smoked)
increased sharply between ages 11 and 14, from around 4% to
21%.
 increases in risky substance use are driven by both risky
(binge) drinking, from 0.6% at age 11 to around 11% at age 14,
and smoking, from 3% to 17%. It also shows a substantial

Proposed prevention plans
are influenced by these
data and aim have a
positive impact on young
people based on this
protected characteristic.
Positive impact of reducing
smoking in households
with young children and
promoting Smoke free
environments where
children play and learn.

We will monitor any
changes in trends and
take appropriate
action.
Ensure that there is a
programme of work in
primary schools to
prevent health risk
behaviours which
continues into
secondary schools

Protected
characteristic
group

What do you know6?
What do people tell you7?
Summary of data and feedback about service users and the wider
community/ public





Who uses the service?
Who doesn’t and why?
Feedback/complaints?
Any differences in outcomes? Why?

What does this mean –
what are the potential
impacts of the
proposal(s)8?
- Consider positive and negative impacts
- On service users / the public
- AND, where relevant, staff*
* if your proposals relate mainly to a
staff restructure or reorganisation,
you should use the template here

What can you do9?
What reasonable mitigations to
reduce or avoid the impact can
you propose?
How will you
communicate/engage or provide
services differently to create a
‘level playing field’ – e.g.
consultation materials in easy
read or hold targeted
engagement events
If there is no current way of
mitigating any negative
impacts, clearly state that here
and consider other actions you
could take in the action plan in
section 4.

increase in young people who have ever tried alcohol, from
13% at age 11 to 48% at age 14.

Agenda Pack Page 33

Disability11

Gender
reassignment12

There is no known data or feedback for of likely differential impact
or need based on gender reassignment.

There is no known data or feedback for of likely differential impact
or need based on gender reassignment.

The Teenage Pregnancy Independent Advisory Group reported
that:
Pregnancy and
maternity13



babies of teenage mothers have worse health outcomes than
older mothers; they are 60% more likely to die in the first year
of life than babies of mothers aged 20 to 39 and twice as likely
to be admitted to hospital because of an accident or
gastroenteritis

Ensure children with
As far as we are aware this disabilities are
protected characteristic in
included in available
of itself does not have an
training.
impact on health risk
behaviours
Will continue to keep
under review
Promote availability of
As far as we are aware this
services via local
protected characteristic in
LGBT networks.
of itself does not have an
impact on health risk
Will continue to keep
behaviours
under review
Proposed prevention plans
should have a positive
impact on health outcomes
for babies and children
from low rates of teenage
pregnancy

Continue with the
work to prevent health
risk behaviours
among school age
children.
Work on the
vulnerable parent’s

Protected
characteristic
group

What do you know6?
What do people tell you7?
Summary of data and feedback about service users and the wider
community/ public





Who uses the service?
Who doesn’t and why?
Feedback/complaints?
Any differences in outcomes? Why?

What does this mean –
what are the potential
impacts of the
proposal(s)8?
- Consider positive and negative impacts
- On service users / the public
- AND, where relevant, staff*
* if your proposals relate mainly to a
staff restructure or reorganisation,
you should use the template here

What can you do9?
What reasonable mitigations to
reduce or avoid the impact can
you propose?
How will you
communicate/engage or provide
services differently to create a
‘level playing field’ – e.g.
consultation materials in easy
read or hold targeted
engagement events

Agenda Pack Page 34

If there is no current way of
mitigating any negative
impacts, clearly state that here
and consider other actions you
could take in the action plan in
section 4.



teenage mothers are:
o

3 times more likely to get postnatal depression than
older mothers

o

more at risk of poor mental health for 3 years after the
birth

o

3 times more likely to smoke during pregnancy than
mothers over 35 and less able to quit smoking than older
mothers

o

Are more likely to have partners who smoke

o

less likely to breastfeed

o

likely to struggle to complete their education and gain
employment

pathway underway
jointly with children’s
services
Ensure that pathways
are in place to identify
women of childbearing
age who participate in
risk-behaviours and
provide behaviour
change support
Focus on identifying
all mothers who
smoke and drink
alcohol provide
support at the earliest
opportunity in
pregnancy.
Will continue to keep
under review

Protected
characteristic
group

What do you know6?
What do people tell you7?
Summary of data and feedback about service users and the wider
community/ public





Who uses the service?
Who doesn’t and why?
Feedback/complaints?
Any differences in outcomes? Why?

What does this mean –
what are the potential
impacts of the
proposal(s)8?
- Consider positive and negative impacts
- On service users / the public
- AND, where relevant, staff*
* if your proposals relate mainly to a
staff restructure or reorganisation,
you should use the template here

What can you do9?
What reasonable mitigations to
reduce or avoid the impact can
you propose?
How will you
communicate/engage or provide
services differently to create a
‘level playing field’ – e.g.
consultation materials in easy
read or hold targeted
engagement events
If there is no current way of
mitigating any negative
impacts, clearly state that here
and consider other actions you
could take in the action plan in
section 4.

Agenda Pack Page 35

Race14

Religion or
belief15

Evidence from Risky behaviours: prevalence in adolescence.
Initial findings from the Millennium Cohort Study Age 14 Survey
shows that overall, risk-taking activities of all types were less
common among teens from ethnic minority groups. For example,
94% of Bangladeshi 14-year-olds said they had never tried
smoking, drinking or drugs, compared to 44% of white British 14year-olds (note This might be selective reporting/gender specific as
smoking in Bangladeshi and Pakistani men is high, whereas low in
females). Black African teenagers had had less contact with the
police than white teenagers, and Black African and Black
Caribbean teenagers were less likely to have ever been a gang
member, though they were more likely to say they had physically
assaulted (shoved, hit, slapped or punched) someone.

There is no known data or feedback for of likely differential impact
or need based on religion or belief.

Smoking prevalence is
generally lower in ethnic
minority groups, but can
higher in specific ethnic
minority communities,
namely: Black Caribbean
and Bangladeshi men, and
Black Caribbean and Irish
women and eastern
European communities.

Work with community
groups to identify and
reduce risky
behaviours in these
groups
Ensure effective
targeting of more
vulnerable groups for
health risk behaviours
(namely young white
males)
Will continue to keep
under review

Reducing risk behaviours
will impact positively on all
communities

Notwithstanding that it
is believed that this
plan will not have a
negative impact on
this characteristic its
impact will be
monitored and action
will be taken to

Protected
characteristic
group

What do you know6?
What do people tell you7?
Summary of data and feedback about service users and the wider
community/ public





Agenda Pack Page 36
Sex/Gender16

Sexual
orientation17

Who uses the service?
Who doesn’t and why?
Feedback/complaints?
Any differences in outcomes? Why?

What does this mean –
what are the potential
impacts of the
proposal(s)8?
- Consider positive and negative impacts
- On service users / the public
- AND, where relevant, staff*
* if your proposals relate mainly to a
staff restructure or reorganisation,
you should use the template here

What can you do9?
What reasonable mitigations to
reduce or avoid the impact can
you propose?
How will you
communicate/engage or provide
services differently to create a
‘level playing field’ – e.g.
consultation materials in easy
read or hold targeted
engagement events
If there is no current way of
mitigating any negative
impacts, clearly state that here
and consider other actions you
could take in the action plan in
section 4.

address identified
issues.
Will continue to keep
under review
Risky behaviours: prevalence in adolescence. Initial findings from
the Millennium Cohort Study Age 14 Survey shows:
 Boys tended to have first tried alcohol at a younger age than
girls: 1 in 5 boys had drunk alcohol by age 11, compared to 1 in
7 girls.
 overall, risk-taking activities of all types were more common
among teenage boys than teenage girls (except for smoking)
Evidence from the Hertfordshire Health Related Behaviour
Questionnaire shows:
 81% of pupils said they have never self-harmed. 10% said they
had and 8% didn’t want to say. 17% Year 10 girl’s self harmed
and 10% did not have any support. If they told someone, most
would talk to a friend (Year 8 and Year 10 ages 12 - 15)
Evidence from the Health Related Behaviour Questionnaire (2016)
for Lesbian, Gay and Bisexual (LGB) shows higher rates of drug
use and more likely to keep issues to themselves (including less
feel listened to at schools and lower levels of self-esteem).

Reducing risk behaviours
generally in young people
will impact positively on
both genders

Given that data shows
that boys engage
more with risk
behaviours, boys are
being supported to
develop resilience and
healthy coping
strategies, using the
Just Talk campaign’.
Will continue to keep
under review

LGB may be more likely to
engage in health risk
behaviours

Promote availability of
services via local
LGBT networks.

Protected
characteristic
group

What do you know6?
What do people tell you7?
Summary of data and feedback about service users and the wider
community/ public





Who uses the service?
Who doesn’t and why?
Feedback/complaints?
Any differences in outcomes? Why?

What does this mean –
what are the potential
impacts of the
proposal(s)8?
- Consider positive and negative impacts
- On service users / the public
- AND, where relevant, staff*
* if your proposals relate mainly to a
staff restructure or reorganisation,
you should use the template here

What can you do9?
What reasonable mitigations to
reduce or avoid the impact can
you propose?
How will you
communicate/engage or provide
services differently to create a
‘level playing field’ – e.g.
consultation materials in easy
read or hold targeted
engagement events
If there is no current way of
mitigating any negative
impacts, clearly state that here
and consider other actions you
could take in the action plan in
section 4.

Agenda Pack Page 37

Marriage and
civil
partnership18

As far as we are aware this
protected characteristic in
As far as we are aware this protected characteristic in of itself does
Will continue to keep
of itself does not have an
not have an impact on health risk behaviours
under review
impact on health risk
behaviours
There is no known data or feedback available of likely differential
impact or need amongst carers.

Carers19

Other relevant
groups20
Consider if there
is a potential
impact (positive or
negative) on
areas such as
health and
wellbeing, crime
and disorder,
Armed Forces

Young people who are
carers may have less
opportunity to engage in
health promoting activities.

Deprivation is a significant risk factor for health risk behaviours
Targeting of resources to
more deprived areas and
targeted groups using staff
half of all under 18 conceptions occur in the 20% most deprived in existing services (such
as YC Hertfordshire and
wards
the Youth Justice Team)
over one third of teenage mothers have no qualifications and
70% are not in education, training or employment

The Teenage Pregnancy Independent Advisory Group reported
that:




Work closely with
Young Carers Service
and Commissioners to
ensure that young
carers have access to
relevant support and
training available to
young people and that
staff are skilled in this
area.
Support teams
working with
vulnerable groups
(including CLA) to
deliver one to one
support and
interventions to
individuals that will not
access mainstream
services. Health

Protected
characteristic
group

What do you know6?
What do people tell you7?
Summary of data and feedback about service users and the wider
community/ public





Who uses the service?
Who doesn’t and why?
Feedback/complaints?
Any differences in outcomes? Why?

What does this mean –
what are the potential
impacts of the
proposal(s)8?
- Consider positive and negative impacts
- On service users / the public
- AND, where relevant, staff*
* if your proposals relate mainly to a
staff restructure or reorganisation,
you should use the template here

What can you do9?
What reasonable mitigations to
reduce or avoid the impact can
you propose?
How will you
communicate/engage or provide
services differently to create a
‘level playing field’ – e.g.
consultation materials in easy
read or hold targeted
engagement events

Agenda Pack Page 38

If there is no current way of
mitigating any negative
impacts, clearly state that here
and consider other actions you
could take in the action plan in
section 4.

community.

Children in care / Children Looked After (CLA) are more likely to
smoke (HRBQ, 2016)

Behaviour Training –
training is being
developed for staff
from services which
support vulnerable
young people
including Targeted
Youth Support,
Children Looked After,
Foster Carers,
Families First staff
and third sector
organisations. The
training will look at
risky behaviours such
as sexual behaviours,
and substance use. It
will encompass an
online training
resource open to all,
and a series of face to
face training sessions.

Opportunity to advance equality of opportunity and/or foster good relations21

A reduction in health risk behaviours may also have a positive impact on other risk behaviours and relevant communities e.g. crime.

Conclusion of your analysis and assessment - select one of the outcomes below22 and summarise why you have selected i, ii, iii or iv;
what you think the most important impacts are; and the key actions you will take.
OUTCOME AND NEXT STEPS
i.
-

SUMMARY

No equality impacts identified
No major change required to proposal

Agenda Pack Page 39

ii. Minimal equality impacts identified
- Adverse impacts have been identified, but have been objectively
justified (provided you do not unlawfully discriminate)
- Ensure decision makers consider the cumulative effect of how a
number of decisions impact on equality
- No major change required to proposal
iii. Potential equality impacts identified
- Take ‘mitigating action’ to change the original policy/proposal,
remove barriers or better advance equality
- Set out clear actions in the action plan in section 4.

The following potential equality impacts have been identified:
 deprived and vulnerable populations are more at risk and may
not access mainstream prevention services
 children from the age of 11 but younger in some circumstances
Mitigating actions are included in the plan below

iv. Major equality impacts identified
- The adverse effects are not justified, cannot be mitigated or show
unlawful discrimination
- You must stop and remove the policy
[you should consult with Legal Services]
- Ensure decision makers understand the equality impact

YOU SHOULD INCLUDE THE SUMMARY ANALYSIS ABOVE IN THE ‘Equalities Implications’ SECTION OF ANY REPORT(S) THAT
GO TO DEPT. MANAGEMENT BOARDS / MEMBER PANELS / CABINET, AS WELL AS APPENDING A COPY OF THE EqIA

4.

Prioritised Action Plan23

Impact identified and
group(s) affected

Action planned
Include actions relating to:

Expected outcome

Measure of success

Lead officer and
timeframe

• mitigation measures
• getting further research
• getting further data/consultation
NB: These actions must now be transferred to service or business plans and monitored/reviewed to ensure they achieve the outcomes identified.

Agenda Pack Page 40

Some young people with
protected characteristics are
at greater risk of participating
in health risk behaviours and
may face additional
challenges in accessing
services as they may also be
marginalised for a variety of
reasons.

Work closely with organisations
who support vulnerable client
groups to address health risk
behaviours as part of their day to
day work.

Those with a high risk
of multiple health risk
behaviours are
supported using
existing services for
young people (e.g. YC
Hertfordshire and
Youth Justice teams)

Partnership working to ensure
that services that work closely
with vulnerable groups have the
skills to address health risk
Increase number of
behaviours through the provision young white males
of training or funding (see above). who receive advice
and support for health
Public health is a member of the
risk behaviours
Youth Justice Board

Successful targeting
and interventions
delivered
Less young white males
engage in multiple
health risk behaviours

Health Improvement
lead (CYP)
Health Improvement
Lead (Sexual health)
Ongoing

Ensure commissioned services
include provision that is
accessible and attractive for men.
Young people and their
families need different levels
of interventions to reduce the
risk of health risk behaviours.

Public health work closely in
schools to ensure that evidence
based tools are adopted.

Parents have access
to useful information
and support

Ensure that there is a programme
of work in primary schools to
prevent health risk behaviours
which continues into secondary
schools, through a) the promotion

Children receive
information and
support to reduce risk
of participating in risky
behaviours
12

Children, young people
and their families
receive advice and
support that they need
Young people can
access advice and
interventions tailored to

Head of Service
(Children and Young
People)
Health Improvement
Lead (Children &
Young People)

of the evidence based five ways
to wellbeing, and b) improving
communications, joint planning,
and early identification of issues
through the establishment of
primary school pastoral leads
networks (secondary school
networks already in place).

Agenda Pack Page 41

Public health nursing service
provides clear role to advise and
support e.g. Chat health, one to
one support and dedicated
websites for parents and young
people on health risk related
behaviours

Monitor and review

Provision of one to one support
and more intensive delivery for
vulnerable groups using services
for young people (e.g. YC
Hertfordshire and Youth Justice
teams).
Progress against actions as
outlined above will be monitored
and reviewed by the Children and
Young People Public Health
Implementation Group.

their needs both in and
Children can access
out of education settings Ongoing
confidential advice and
support where required Reduction in health risk
behaviours
Young people that are
more vulnerable of
multiple risk
behaviours receive
more intensive advice
and support through
trusted services and
staff trained to work
with young people.

Improved access to
those groups with
protected
characteristics

This EqIA has been signed off by:
Lead Equality Impact Assessment officer:
Head of Service or Business Manager:
Review date:
October 2019

Date:
Date:

Please now send the completed EqIA to equalities@hertfordshire.gov.uk
13

High quality service
delivery.
Agreed actions are
implemented within
timescales agreed

Head of Service
(Children and Young
People)
6 monthly

Please also ensure that the EqIA is referenced in and included as an appendix to reports to Management Boards
Cabinet Panels and Cabinet so that decision makers can consider equality impacts before making decisions.

Agenda Pack Page 42
14

Guidance end-notes
1

The following principles explain what we must do to fulfil our duties under the Equality Act when considering the effect of existing and new policies/
practices/services on equality. They must all be met or the EqIA (and any decision based on it) may be open to challenge:








Knowledge: everyone working for the council must be aware of our equality duties and apply them appropriately
Timeliness: the duty applies at the time of considering proposals and before a final decision is taken
Real Consideration: the duty must be an integral and rigorous part of your decision-making and influence the process.
Sufficient Information: you must assess what information you have and what is needed to give proper consideration.
No delegation: the council is responsible for ensuring that anyone who provides services on our behalf can comply with the duty, are required in
contracts to comply with it, and do comply in practice. It is a duty that cannot be delegated.
Review: the equality duty is a continuing duty – it continues after proposals are implemented/reviewed.
Proper Record Keeping: we must keep records of the process and the impacts identified.

2

Agenda Pack Page 43

Our duties in the Equality Act 2010
HCC has a legal duty under this Act to show that we have identified and considered the impact and potential impact of our activities on all people with
‘protected characteristics’ (see end notes 11-20 for details of the nine-protected characteristics). This applies to policies, services (including commissioned
services), and our employees. If you are creating an ‘arms-length’ company, seek advice from the Equality Team or Legal.
We use this template to do this and evidence our consideration. You must give ‘due regard’ (pay conscious attention) to the need to:





Avoid, reduce or minimise negative impact: if you identify unlawful discrimination, including victimisation and harassment, you must stop the
action and take advice immediately.
Promote equality of opportunity: by
 Removing or minimising disadvantages suffered by equality groups
 Taking steps to meet the needs of equality groups
 Encouraging equality groups to participate in public life or any other activity where participation is disproportionately low
 Consider if there is a need to treat disabled people differently, including more favourable treatment where necessary
Foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and those who don’t: e.g. by promoting understanding.

EqIAs should always be proportionate to:

The size of the service or scope of the policy/strategy

The resources involved

The size of the likely impact – e.g. the numbers of people affected and their vulnerability
The greater the potential adverse impact of the proposal(s) on a protected group (e.g. disabled people) and the more vulnerable the group is, the more
thorough and demanding the process required by the Act will be. Unless they contain sensitive personal/employee data – EqIAs are public documents. They
are published with Cabinet and Panel papers and public consultations and are available on request.
3

Who completes the EqIA: The person who is making the decision or advising the decision-maker about a policy. It is better to do this as a team, with
people involved who understand the implementation of the policy.

4

15

Title of EqIA: This should clearly explain what service / policy / strategy / change you are assessing.

6

Data & Information: Your EqIA needs to be informed by data. You should consider the following:

What data relevant to the impact on protected groups is available?
(is there an existing EqIA?, local service data, national data, community data, similar proposal in another local authority).

What further evidence is needed and how can you get it? (e.g. further research or engagement with the affected groups).

What do you know from service/local data about needs, access and outcomes? Focus on each characteristic in turn.

What might any local demographic changes or trends mean for the service or function? Also consider national data if appropriate

Does data/monitoring show that any policies or practices create particular problems or difficulties for any group(s)?

Is the service having a positive or negative effect on particular people or groups in the community?

7

What have people told you about the service, function, area?

Use service user feedback, complaints, audits, and/or the results of specific consultation/engagement

Are there patterns or differences in what people from different groups tell you?

Remember, you must engage/consult appropriately and in an inclusive way with those likely to be affected to fulfil the equality duty.

You can read HCC’s Consultation and Engagement toolkits for full advice on this

For practical tips and advice on consulting with people from protected groups, see this ‘How-to’ guide

8

Impact: Your EqIA must consider fully and properly actual and potential impacts against each protected characteristic:

The equality duty does not stop changes, but means we must fully consider and address the anticipated impacts on people.

Be accurate and transparent, but also realistic: don’t exaggerate speculative risks and negative impacts.

Be detailed and specific where you can so decision-makers have a concrete sense of potential effects.

Questions to ask when assessing whether and how the proposals impact on service users, staff and the wider community:
o
Are one or more protected groups affected differently and/or disadvantaged? How, and to what extent?
o
Is there evidence of higher/lower uptake among different groups? Which, and to what extent?
o
Does the project relate to an area with known inequalities (where national evidence or previous research is available)?
o
If there are likely to be different impacts on different groups, is that consistent with the overall objective?
o
If there is negative differential impact, how can you minimise that while taking into account your overall aims?
o
Do the effects amount to unlawful discrimination? If so the plan must be modified.
o
Does it relate to an area where equality objectives have been set by HCC in our Equality Strategy?

9

Consider actions relating to the following:

That specifically address the impacts you’ve identified and show how they will remove, reduce or avoid any negative impacts

Explain clearly what any mitigating measures are, and the extent to which you think they will reduce / remove the adverse effect

Will you need to communicate or provide services in different ways for different groups in order to create a “level playing field”?

State how you can maximise any positive impacts or advance equality of opportunity.

If you do not have sufficient equality information, state how you can fill the gaps.

Agenda Pack Page 44

5

16

Age: People of all ages, but consider in particular children and young people, older people and carers, looked after children and young people leaving care.
Also consider working age people.
10

Disability: When looking at disability, consideration should be given to people with different types of impairments: physical (including mobility), learning,
aural or sensory (including hearing and vision impairment), visible and non-visible impairment. Consideration should also be given to: people with HIV, people
with mental health needs and people with drug and alcohol problems. People with conditions such as diabetes and cancer and some other health conditions
also have protection under the Equality Act 2010.

11

Gender Reassignment: In the Act a transgender person is someone who proposes to, starts or has completed a process to change his or her gender. A
person does not need to be under medical supervision to be protected. Consider transgender people, transsexual people and transvestites.

12

Pregnancy and Maternity: When looking at pregnancy and maternity, give consideration to pregnant women, breastfeeding mothers, part-time workers,
women with caring responsibilities, women who are lone parents and parents on low incomes, women on maternity leave and Keeping in Touch days.

13

Race/Ethnicity: Apart from the common ethnic groups, consideration should also be given to Gypsy, Roma and Irish Travellers communities, people of
other nationalities outside Britain who reside here, refugees and asylum seekers and speakers of other languages.
14

Religion and Belief: Religion includes any religion with a clear structure and belief system. As a minimum you should consider the most common religious
groups (Christian, Muslim, Hindu, Jews, Sikh, Buddhist) and people with no religion or philosophical belief(s).

Agenda Pack Page 45

15

Sex/Gender: Consider girls and women, boys and men, married people, civil partners, part-time workers, carers (both of children with disabilities and older
cares), parents (mothers and fathers), in particular lone parents and parents on low incomes.
16

17

Sexual Orientation: The Act protects bisexual, heterosexual, gay and lesbian people.

Marriage and Civil Partnership: consider married people and civil partners – e.g. do same sex couple in a civil partnership have the same rights and
benefits as married people?

18

Carers: From April 2015, carers (people who provide unpaid care to a friend or relative) have been entitled to an assessment of their own needs in the
same way as those they care for. Although not a ‘protected characteristic’ HCC Diversity Board has agreed that the impact of proposals on carers should
also be considered.

19

Other relevant groups: You should consider the impact on our service users in other related areas, such as health and wellbeing, crime and disorder (e.g.
people experiencing domestic abuse), community relations and socio-economic status (e.g. homelessness or low incomes). If the proposal is likely to have
an impact on service users in these areas, HCC Public Health and the County Community Safety Unit may be able to help. Also consider whether your policy
or decision will impact current or former Armed Forces personnel living and working in Hertfordshire. The Council is committed to the Hertfordshire
Community Covenant, a commitment from public and private organisations in the county to support the active and retired Armed Forces community.

20

Equality of opportunity and good relations: summarise anything that will have a potential positive impact over and above the work of your project – e.g.
engaging with the community may help raise awareness and community understanding of the needs of certain groups.

21

22

Conclusion

17





Make a frank and realistic assessment of the overall extent to which the negative impacts can be reduced or avoided by the mitigating
measures. Also explain what positive impacts will result from the actions and how you can make the most of these.
Make it clear if a change is needed to the proposal itself. Is further engagement, research or monitoring needed?
Make it clear if, as a result of the analysis, the policy/proposal should be stopped.

Action Planning: The Equality Duty is an ongoing duty: policies must be kept under review, continuing to give ‘due regard’ to the duty. If an assessment of
a broad proposal leads to more specific proposals, then further equality assessment and consultation are needed.

23

Agenda Pack Page 46
18

HERTFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
PUBLIC HEALTH AND PREVENTION
CABINET PANEL

Agenda Item No.

4

6 SEPTEMBER 2018 AT 10.00 AM
PUBLIC HEALTH QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE REPORT – Q1 2018/19
Report of the Director of Public Health
Authors: -

David Conrad, Consultant in Public Health (Evidence
& Intelligence) (Tel: 01992 555391)
Will Yuill, Public Health Analyst (Tel: 01992 555127)

Executive Member: -

Richard Roberts, Public Health and Prevention

1.

Purpose of report

1.1

The purpose of the Report is to provide Panel members with an
overview of work being undertaken in Public Health, along with key
statistics on local service performance and public health outcomes.

2.

Summary

2.1

A Public Health quarterly performance report (Appendix 1) is compiled
by the Public Health Evidence & Intelligence Team.

2.2

Key Messages from the latest report (covering Q1 2017/18) are
highlighted on page 1 of Appendix 1.

3.

Recommendations

3.1

Panel is asked to note and discuss the content of the Public Health
Quarterly Performance Report for Q1 2018/19 and the accompanying
presentation (Appendix 2).

4.

Background

4.1

The Public Health quarterly performance report has been developed by
the Public Health Evidence & Intelligence Team to provide Panel
members with an overview of work being undertaken in Public Health,
along with key statistics on local service performance and public health

Agenda Pack Page 47

1

outcomes. This is the first quarter in which the new report has been
produced.
4.2

The report will be presented to Panel each quarter, accompanied by a
brief overview of data on one of the four life stages featured in
Hertfordshire’s current Health & Wellbeing Strategy (Starting Well,
Developing Well, Living & Working Well, Ageing Well)

4.3

Key messages from the Public Health Quarterly Performance Report
for Q1 2018/19 are as follows:
 Four complaints and six compliments were received in the most
recent quarter.
 The uptake of weight management services has decreased this
quarter as expected from the seasonal high of Q4. The % of
service users completing and achieving a 5% weight loss
continues to be higher than KPIs.
 Whilst uptake for smoking cessation declined, the proportion
successfully quitting remains high. Early Q1 data suggests that
performance has increased compared with Q1 in 2017/18.
 292,818 Health Checks have been offered and 151,835
delivered since Q1 2013/14.
 The Beezee Families programmes are running well. Retention
rates since the service started have exceeded expectations. For
Group G, the retention rate was 85% (the contract requires
75%).
 3,435 new birth visits were carried out in in Q3. Performance
remains above the target of 90% and is consistently higher than
the England average.
 Successful completions for drug and alcohol treatment remain
high, with over 2,000 successes this year so far.
 Attendance at Sexual Health Hertfordshire services remains
high, with increasing numbers using online services.
 The number of tests for STIs has increased overall with more
diagnoses as a result.
 HIV testing uptake remains high, with 5224 completed by Sexual
Health Hertfordshire in Q4.
 Emergency Hormone Contraception provided by pharmacies
remains high with 786 given out in Q4 2017/18.

5.

Equality Impact Assessment

5.1

When considering proposals placed before Members it is important that
they are fully aware of, and have themselves rigorously considered the
equalities implications of the decision that they are taking.

5.2

Rigorous consideration will ensure that proper appreciation of any
potential impact of that decision on the County Council’s statutory
obligations under the Public Sector Equality Duty. As a minimum this

Agenda Pack Page 48

2

requires decision makers to read and carefully consider the content of
any Equalities Impact Assessment (EqIA) produced by officers.
5.3

The Equality Act 2010 requires the Council when exercising its
functions to have due regard to the need to (a) eliminate discrimination,
harassment, victimisation and other conduct prohibited under the Act;
(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a
relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it and
(c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it. The protected
characteristics under the Equality Act 2010 are age; disability; gender
reassignment; marriage and civil partnership; pregnancy and maternity;
race; religion and belief, sex and sexual orientation.

5.4

No EqIA was undertaken in relation to this matter, as the report
presents performance monitoring data and information on existing
services only.

Agenda Pack Page 49

3

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX 1

Public Health Quarterly Report – 2018/19 Q1
Key departmental performance, outcomes and ongoing work
Key Messages
♦

Four complaints and six compliments were received in the most recent quarter.

♦

The uptake of weight management services has decreased this quarter, as expected from the
seasonal high of Quarter 4, The % of service users completing and achieving a 5% weight loss
continues to be higher than KPIs.

♦
Whilst uptake for smoking cessation declined this quarter, the proportion successfully quitting
remains high. Early Q1 data suggests that performance has increased compared with Q1 2017/18.

♦

292,818 Health Checks have been offered and 151,835 delivered since Q1 2013/14

♦
♦

The Beezee Families programmes are running well. Retention rates since the service started have
exceeded expectations. For Group G the retention rate was 85% (the contract requires 75%).

♦

3,435 new birth visits were carried out in Quarter 3. Performance remains above the target of 90%
and is consistently higher than the England average.

♦

Successful completions for drug and alcohol treatment remain high, with over 2,000 successes this
year so far.

♦

Attendance at Sexual Health Hertfordshire services remains high, with increasing numbers using
online services.

♦

The number of tests for STIs has increased overall with more diagnoses as a result

♦

HIV testing uptake remains high, with 5,224 completed by Sexual Health Hertfordshire in Q4.
Emergency Hormone Contraception provided by pharmacies remains high, with 786 given out in

Q4 2017/18.
About
this report

Service data is presented at the top of each page with, where available, relevant wider public
health data below to support the interpretation of service data (see iconography guide below)
showing comparisons with England and similar authorities (10 closest CIPFA statistical
neighbours, ranked best/highest = 1) as well as district variation. Beneath this is a brief
summary of the service covering any major changes, developments or work being undertaken.
Colours
Statistically

Statistically

Not statistically

Statistically

Statistically

significant better

significant worse

significantly different

significant increase

significant decrease

Icons



Increase in value



Decrease in value



No change in value /
no trend



No data /
no update

3rg
4PH.Intelligence@hertfordshire.gov.uk

Agenda Pack Page 51

1

Public Health Quarterly Report

Q1 2018/19

PH1: Complaints and Compliments
P

Stage 1

Stage 2

Ombudsman

Compliments

18
16
14
12
Number

10
8
6
4
2
0
2016/17 Q2 2016/17 Q3 2016/17 Q4 2017/18 Q1 2017/18 Q2 2017/18 Q3 2017/18 Q4 2018/19 Q1

Four complaints and six compliments were received in the most recent quarter.

Assessment

Actions

Three complaints were in relation to the Health
No actions were required as a result.
Improvement Service., none of which were upheld. The
other complaint was about an alleged data protection
breach for which there was no conclusive proof.
Compliments - 5 related to support of and collaboration
with other organisations, and 1 for support for a client of
the Herts Health Improvement Service.

hertshealthevidence.org

AgendaPH.Intelligence@hertfordshire.gov.uk
Pack Page 52

2

Public Health Quarterly Report

Q1 2018/19

PH3: Adult Weight Management: uptake and % achieving 5% weight loss
P

Referrals

Completers achieving 5% weight loss

1600

100
90
80
70
60
50
40
30
20
10
0

1400
1200
800

%

Number

1000
600
400
200
0
2017/18 Q1 2017/18 Q2 2017/18 Q3 2017/18 Q4 2018/19 Q1 2018/19 Q2 2018/19 Q3
The uptake of weight management services has decreased this quarter, as expected from the
seasonal high of Quarter 4, The % of service users completing and achieving a 5% weight loss
continues to be higher than KPIs.

Assessment

Actions

The uptake of weight management services has varied
due to seasonal trends and there is always an expectation
of particularly lower numbers during Q3. Uptake
decreased in Q1 in line with the expected seasonal
pattern. There has been a slight increase in the numbers
achieving 5% weight loss, which is very positive.

Both Weight Watchers and Slimming World continue to
provide a high quality service. Work is ongoing to improve
data quality through the contract monitoring and this will
be reviewed regularly.

Service Summary: adult health improvement (excl. tobacco control)

Hertfordshire Health Improvement Service (HHIS) was involved with the following during Q1:
 Leading on the CQUINs and Quality Schedule metrics with CCGs and NHS Trusts as well as providing
training and support to front line staff to deliver the requirements.
 Review of commissioning of Public Health Services with GP, community pharmacy and other providers
and providing training and support to providers to maintain and improve quality
 Work with the STP on a systems approach to cardiovascular disease prevention (CVD), including the bid
for funding from the British Heart Foundation to prevent strokes
 Building HHIS capacity, policies, procedures and resources and ensuring staff competency to deliver
5,000 Health Checks in 2018/19 and procuring the necessary equipment to deliver this service.
 Promoting and delivering a specialist weight management pilot in Watford & Three Rivers and
Stevenage, with evaluation due in Q2, ensuring the intervention and outcomes of the pilot are costeffective.
 Developing workplace initiatives to improve health, including Health Checks and MOTs and delivering
Making Every Contact Count (MECC), including alcohol identification and advice and support pathways.
 Delivering training for health champions in the workplace (HCC) including mental health awareness.

hertshealthevidence.org
PH.Intelligence@hertfordshire.gov.uk

Agenda Pack Page 53

3

Public Health Quarterly Report

Q1 2018/19

PH4: Smoking Cessation: uptake and successful quits
P

Uptake

Completion

2500

100
90
80
70
60
50
40
30
20
10
0

2000

%

Number

1500
1000
500
0
2016/17
Q1

2016/17
Q2

2016/17
Q3

2016/17
Q4

2017/18
Q1

2017/18
Q2

2017/18
Q3

2017/18
Q4

Whilst uptake for smoking cessation declined this quarter, the proportion successfully quitting
remains high. Early Q1 data suggests that performance has increased compared with Q1 2017/18.

Assessment

Actions

Routine and manual workers suffer a disproportionate
amount of ill health and disability caused by unhealthy
lifestyles including smoking and this is a significant cause
of health inequalities. Reducing smoking in this
population is a key public health priority to reduce health
inequalities. A disproportionate number of smokers quit
smoking from our more deprived communities. Although
the number of smokers who want help to quit smoking
has decreased, the quality of stop smoking services
remains high with a greater success rate than England as
a whole.

A communications and marketing plan is in place to
promote Smokefree workplaces and engage employers
through a range of media channels with campaigns (e.g.
Stoptober, Health Harms, No Smoking Day). Services
provide a range of treatment options, including support
for e-cigarette users, helping smokers who want to use
alternatives to prescribed medication and nicotine
replacement therapy. As well as our specialist services,
services are available through commissioned pharmacies
and GP practices, with training and support provided by
HCC's Health Improvement Service.

Service Summary: tobacco control

We are working to deliver Hertfordshire's Tobacco Control Strategic Plan 2016-2018:
 Coordinating a multi-agency Tobacco Control Alliance with strategic and operational partners to reduce
smoking prevalence. Delivering training, so partners have the skills to address smoking and other risky
behaviours (e.g. alcohol) and embedding prevention into NHS/STP service delivery.
 Leading a communication and marketing plan to promote quitting across all organisations and
workplaces (e.g. Stoptober, Health Harms Campaign, No Smoking Day and the award-winning ‘Love
Your Bump’ campaign).
 Promoting a toolkit for schools to become Smokefree and provide support for young smokers
 Delivering specialist stop smoking services in high prevalence groups.
 Developing a Smokefree toolkit focusing on routine and manual workplaces.
 Ensuring high risk groups, (e.g. those with long-term / mental health conditions, prisoners, the
unemployed) are encouraged and supported to quit using effective evidence-based methods.
 Promoting tobacco harm reduction for smokers unable to quit, including swapping to e-cigarettes
 Promote Hertfordshire's E-cig policy with all organisations.
hertshealthevidence.org

AgendaPH.Intelligence@hertfordshire.gov.uk
Pack Page 54

4

Public Health Quarterly Report

Q1 2018/19

PH5: NHS Health Checks: invited and delivered
P

Offered

Received

%

100
90
80
70
60
50
40
30
20
10
0
13/14 Q116/17 Q1

13/14 Q116/17 Q2

13/14 Q116/17 Q3

13/14 Q116/17 Q4

13/14 Q117/18 Q1

13/14 Q117/18 Q2

13/14 Q117/18 Q3

13/14 Q117/18 Q4

292,818 Health Checks have been offered and 151,835 delivered since Q1 2013/14

Assessment

Actions

Offers: 86.2% of the eligible population have been
offered a health check compared to an England average
of 90.9% and a Public Health England target of 100%.
There are practice differences in how GP practices offer
NHS Health Checks, and not all of the offers have been
recorded.
Received: 44.7% of those offered a health check went on
to receive one. This is similar to the England average of
44.3%.
Work is ongoing to ensure practices reach their invitation
targets, use the correct READ codes to record invitations,
use the appropriate clinical tools, and follow up patients
according to service specification/best practice
guidelines.

Maintain relationships with the LMC and GP practices who
are currently the sole provider of NHS Health Checks. A
new 5-year rolling programme began in Q1 18/19 and
practices are required to prioritise their invitations based
on a patient's risk of heart attack, stroke, or other
measures of need. HCC's Health Improvement Service is
developing the capacity, policies, procedures and
resources to deliver Health Checks in workplaces and
community venues during 2018/19.

hertshealthevidence.org
PH.Intelligence@hertfordshire.gov.uk

Agenda Pack Page 55

5

Public Health Quarterly Report

Q1 2018/19

PH6: Children's Healthy Weight: uptake and outcomes
P

Finishers

% Achieving nutritional impact

% Achieving exercise impact

160

100
90
80
70
60
50
40
30
20
10
0

140
120
80

%

Number

100
60
40
20
0
Group A
Group B - Group C - Group D - Group E Group F - Group G - Group H 10/14-03/15 04/15-08/15 09/15-02/16 02/16-07/16 09/16-02/17 03/17-07/17 09/17-01/18 04/18-07/18

The Beezee Families programmes are running well. Retention rates since the service started have
exceeded expectations. For Group G the retention rate was 85% (the contract requires 75%).

Assessment

Actions

65% of participants showed a reduction in BMI Z Score
from the start to the end of the programme. This
indicates that their BMI is now closer to their normal
growth pattern than it was when they started the
programme.
As shown on the graph, over 80% of families feel that the
programme will help them to eat healthier and to do
more exercise. There is a high level of satisfaction from
the families on the programme; 100% of parents rate the
service as good or excellent and 100% of children rate
the service as good or excellent.

The current programme for Beezee Families is running
from after the school Easter break until the start of the
school summer holidays.
The report for this programme will be available from early
September. Therefore, the next update on the service will
be available for the next quarterly report.
The Beezee Families programmes will continue to run until
March 2020.

Service Summary: children and young people

The Children and Young People's team has delivered the following:

 Monitoring the progress of the Family Centre Service contract mobilisation phase. Several
workstreams are in place to address a number of core areas of work to ensure that the new
service will be able to deliver the new vision in the autumn.
 Developed a new e learning module on mental health for school governors working in
partnership with Herts for Learning. This is being piloted currently.
 Working with School Nursing, a new online health needs assessment (The Lancaster Model)
for Reception year, Year 6 and Year 9 has been piloted and well received. This will be rolled
out across the county in the new academic year.
 Ongoing implementation of the Just Talk campaign (boys’ mental health).
 Work has started to include the colleges and university in being part of a new Pastoral Leads
network. The first meeting has taken place this quarter.
 Ongoing monitoring of current contracts, such as Beezee Bodies, health visiting and school
nursing.
hertshealthevidence.org

AgendaPH.Intelligence@hertfordshire.gov.uk
Pack Page 56

6

Public Health Quarterly Report

Q1 2018/19

PH7: Health Visitors: new birth visits (NBV) within 14 days of birth
P

NBVs in 14 days

%

100
90
80
70
60
50
40
30
20
10
0
2016/17 Q1

2016/17 Q2

2016/17 Q3

2016/17 Q4

2017/18 Q1

2017/18 Q2

2017/18 Q3

3,435 new birth visits were carried out in Quarter 3. Performance remains above the target of 90%
and is consistently higher than the England average.

Assessment

Actions

All families are offered a NBV. The % seen in
Hertfordshire within 14 days is above the national
average and we compare well in comparison to our
statistical neighbours. Some do not receive a NBV within
14 days due to their baby remaining in hospital at this
time or due to personal choice/circumstances. Those
families who are not seen at this time are offered a
further appointment and 99%+ of all families in
Hertfordshire receive a NBV.

After a robust tender process, Hertfordshire Community
NHS Trust was successfully awarded the Public Health
nursing element of the new Family Centre Service contract.
Mobilisation has formally started as of 1st April 2018. The
new contract will start from October 1st 2018. There will
be a transition period as staff take up new positions etc.

hertshealthevidence.org
PH.Intelligence@hertfordshire.gov.uk

Agenda Pack Page 57

7

Public Health Quarterly Report

Q1 2018/19

PH8: Successful completion of drugs & alcohol treatment - alcohol, opiate, non-opiate
P

Alcohol

Opiate

Non-Opiate

%

100
90
80
70
60
50
40
30
20
10
0
2016/17 Q2

2016/17 Q3

2016/17 Q4

2017/18 Q1

2017/18 Q2

2017/18 Q3

2017/18 Q4

Successful completions for drug and alcohol treatment remain high, with over 2,000 successes this
year so far.

Assessment

Actions

Individuals achieving a successful completion outcome
demonstrate significant improvements in health and
general wellbeing. Revised Local Outcome Comparator
(LOC) measures were very recently introduced which
impacts from Quarter 4 data. The LOCs mean that each
Local Authority has been assigned 32 revised and new
comparator areas which are areas most similar to
Hertfordshire in terms of complexity of those in drug and
alcohol treatment. These changes are with immediate
effect and will impact on Hertfordshire’s position within
the top quartile ranges (against local comparator areas)
for successful completions.

Due to the changes to the LOC areas, Hertfordshire’s
position within the top quartile ranges for successful
completions from Quarter 4 has now changed.
Hertfordshire is now slightly outside the range for Opiates
and non-Opiates, but remains within the top quartile
range for Alcohol.
Action- To further understand the impact that changes to
LOCs will have in terms of Hertfordshire’s position within
the top quartile ranges for successful completions for
Quarter 1 and to develop and implement any necessary
actions to improve performance and to remain within top
quartile ranges across opiates, non-opiates and alcohol.

Service Summary: health protection and resilience

 We are currently using recent performance data to develop with partners the next annual plan for local
health protection priorities, where local action is required to improve health protection outcomes.
 We continue to work with other HCC departments and external partners to ensure preparedness for
major health protection events, such as pandemic flu and participate in exercises to test local plans.
 Work has already begun with PHE to promote uptake of NHS flu vaccination by social care staff (added
to the eligible groups earlier this year) and to increase uptake of shingles vaccination.
 We have participated in multi-disciplinary Incident Management Teams to manage outbreaks of
tuberculosis, seasonal influenza and rising incidence of syphilis and concerns about possible
contamination of water supply and of localised particulate air pollution.
 We continue to work with Public Health England and local providers to develop care pathways for local
people with TB who do not take their medication.

hertshealthevidence.org

AgendaPH.Intelligence@hertfordshire.gov.uk
Pack Page 58

8

Public Health Quarterly Report

Q1 2018/19

PH9: Sexual Health Hertfordshire (SHH): Attendance at sexual health services
P

SHH Clinic attendance
17000
16500

Number

16000
15500
15000
14500
14000
2017/18 Q1 2017/18 Q2 2017/18 Q3 2017/18 Q4 2018/19 Q1 2018/19 Q2 2018/19 Q3 2018/19 Q4
Attendance at Sexual Health Hertfordshire services remains high, with increasing numbers using
online services.

Assessment

Actions

The numbers attending Sexual Health Hertfordshire
• Clinical practice for contraceptive pill checks has
services remains high, with increasing numbers using
changed from 6 months to annually to free up clinic
online services rather than appointments. There has been
spaces
• Watford & Stevenage clinics redesigned to better triage
a significant reduction in patients being turned away
and treat patients, increasing capacity and therefore
(2016/17 = 1,861, 2017/18 = 555).
attendance.
• Specific clinic for LGBTQ patients in Watford/ Stevenage
• Reducing Hubs from 4 to 3, remaining Spoke clinics to
be Level 2 (STI testing) with longer hours inc. Saturdays
• Notice to leave St Albans Hospital by 01/19. HCC capital
funding for new service in Hatfield (area of need) but
difficulty finding property

Service Summary: sexual health

We are continuing to deliver actions within the Sexual Health Improvement Plan:
 Launched on-line STI testing (Feb 2018). During April and May 2018, 2,773 kits were ordered, of which
124 (6%) were reactive for an STI.
 Increased capacity in Level 2 clinics on borders of Hertfordshire (e.g. Bishop Stortford, Cheshunt) where
migration to other services outside Hertfordshire is high.
 Clinic U – Specific clinic for LGBTQ patients in Watford and Stevenage.
 Access to Long Acting Reversible Contraception (LARC) through commissioned GP practices.
 Promotion of LARC is being prioritised especially via Pharmacies providing Emergency Hormonal
Contraception (EHC), where 52% of women accessing EHC do not use any form of contraception. A
needs assessment of those women accessing EHC will be undertaken in October 2019.
 Self-sampling HIV kits available on-line.
 In March 2018, a joint project between Public Health and Sexual Health Hertfordshire commenced to
undertake audit of patients diagnosed late for HIV infection prior to attending the service.
 The Hertfordshire Grid for Learning updated to include more Sex and Relationship Education guidance
and Sexual Health information.
hertshealthevidence.org
PH.Intelligence@hertfordshire.gov.uk

Agenda Pack Page 59

9

Public Health Quarterly Report

Q1 2018/19

PH10: Sexual Health Hertfordshire (SHH): STI testing and diagnosis
PH10

2017/18 Q1

2017/18 Q2

10000
9000
8000
7000
6000
5000
4000
3000
2000
1000
0

2017/18 Q3

2017/18 Q4

PH10

700
600
500

Number

400
300
200
100
Chlamydia Chlamydia
Tests (15-24)
Tests

Syphilis Tests Gonorrhoea
Tests

0

Chlamydia
Diagnosed
(15-24)

Chlamydia
Diagnosed

Syphilis
Diagnosed

Gonorrhoea
Diagnosed

The number of tests for STIs has increased overall with more diagnoses as a result

Assessment

Actions

The rate of chlamydia screening in 15-24 year olds has
increased since Q1. Testing for chlamydia (all age),
syphilis and gonorrhoea remains stable, with diagnosis
rates significantly lower than the England average.

• Working with other local authorities across East of
England to address a rise in number cases of infectious
syphilis at clinics. Hertfordshire will deliver social
marketing campaign to increase online testing amongst
men who have sex with men. Since April, SH:24 online
testing has identified 8 cases of Syphilis infection.
• New 2-minute film produced on role of sexual health
services in Hertfordshire. Aim to dispel myths and
encourage more people to get tested.
• Promoting new national STI campaign targeting people
aged 16-24 and STI clinic at Herts Uni (1 day every 2
weeks)

hertshealthevidence.org

AgendaPH.Intelligence@hertfordshire.gov.uk
Pack Page 60

10

Public Health Quarterly Report

Q1 2018/19

PH11: HIV Testing Uptake
P

HIV Tests

Uptake
100
90
80
70
60
50
40
30
20
10
0

%

Number

5600
5500
5400
5300
5200
5100
5000
4900
4800
4700
4600
2017/18 Q12017/18 Q22017/18 Q32017/18 Q42018/19 Q12018/19 Q22018/19 Q32018/19 Q4

HIV testing uptake remains high, with 5,224 completed by Sexual Health Hertfordshire in Q4.

Assessment

Actions

The number of HIV tests performed remains stable, with
the percentage taking up the offer of a test also stable.
Sexual Health Hertfordshire has an annual target of 86%
of patients accepting an HIV test, which they are
currently meeting.

• Increase uptake of HIV testing amongst individuals
diagnosed with TB disease as part of their routine care.
• Review case notes of all those diagnosed late in
2016/17 to identify opportunities missed and highlight
risks amongst Primary Care, LMC and CCG.
• Increase on-line provision by commissioning the
national HIV home sampling service and STI testing
service (including HIV) via Sexual Health Hertfordshire.
• Increase awareness of STI/HIV testing by supporting
national HIV Testing Week (11/18) and Herts Pride
(09/18).

hertshealthevidence.org
PH.Intelligence@hertfordshire.gov.uk

Agenda Pack Page 61

11

Public Health Quarterly Report

Q1 2018/19

PH12: Emergency Hormone Contraception (EHC) provided by pharmacies
P

EHC
900
800
700

Number

600
500
400
300
200
100
0
2016/17 Q1 2016/17 Q2 2016/17 Q3 2016/17 Q4 2017/18 Q1 2017/18 Q2 2017/18 Q3 2017/18 Q4
Emergency Hormone Contraception provided by pharmacies remains high, with 786 given out in
Q4 2017/18.

Assessment

Actions

• Good coverage of EHC services across Hertfordshire
and good relationship with pharmacies offering
services
• Just over half of all women accessing EHC had not
used any form of contraception.
• 33% of women accessing EHC are from the AL10
postcode (where University is located)
• Increase in costs due to introduction of more efficient
drug 'EllaOne'. Expenditure will be closely monitored
• Limited knowledge of needs of women accessing
service.
• Free condom wallets now available at all EHC services

• Continue with quality visits to participating EHC
pharmacies
• Share quarterly update and information with
pharmacists to encourage effective practice
• Promote and support continuation of Sexual Health
Clinic at University of Herts to encourage long term
contraception use and STI testing.
• Undertake needs assessment of those women accessing
EHC services e.g. establish why contraception is not
used, service quality, sexual health information offered.
• Promote Long Acting Reversible Contraception (LARC)

hertshealthevidence.org

AgendaPH.Intelligence@hertfordshire.gov.uk
Pack Page 62

12

Public Health Quarterly Report

Q1 2018/19

Service Summary: commissioning
 CCGs have agreed funding for adult weight management. PH has developed a partnership
agreement to clarify the arrangements, which is currently being finalised and approved by all the
partners.
 We are likely to extend existing contracts with current Adult Weight Management providers whilst we
procure new contracts.
 We are currently out to tender for two contracts to provide drug and alcohol treatment services. Bids
are being evaluated and moderated, with a recommendation to award contracts expected in late July.
Service users, carers and young commissioners are involved in the evaluation.
 We are developing new contracts for delivery of PH interventions by GPs and community
pharmacies. Current contracts will expire in March 2019. New contracts will be developed in
collaboration with the LMC and LPC which act as umbrella organisations for these providers, before
sending contracts to individual practices and pharmacies
 We are working hard to ensure that our commissioned providers are compliant with GDPR
requirements. We are formally varying existing contracts, and enhancing our contract management
approaches and supporting our providers so that they are able to comply with the new legislation.
 We are undertaking training on new arrangements for electronic signatures for contracts. Given the
number of contracts that we have, particularly those with primary care providers, we anticipate that
this will save c£5,000 in printing, distribution and archiving costs.
 We have commenced development of a commissioning framework that will sit alongside the PH
strategy and set out our commissioning intentions over the lifetime of the strategy.

Service Summary: CCG support
 Public Health input to the Beds, Herts, West Essex and Milton Keynes Priorities Forum – attending
meetings and contributing to policy development
 Support to CCG in regard to implementation of policies from the Priorities Forum
 Public Health support to CCGs in responding to enquiries, complaints and FOIs
 Attendance and participation in various committees (Commissioning Executive, Quality Committee)
 Involvement in CCG policy development, where PH input required
 Work to support NHS service commissioning, decommissioning, redesign of pathways
 Conducting audits within Trusts/service providers on behalf of the CCG
 Evidence and intelligence support to Individual Funding Requests
 Ad hoc advice re various issues of a public health nature

Service Summary: delivery and resources
Priorities for this quarter have been:
 Supporting the recommissioning of the Drug and Alcohol Service
 Identifying areas where we can make savings in line with the Integrated Planning budget targets
 Integration with other HCC Departments e.g. community protection, trading standards and ACS
 Delivery of PH initiatives e.g. District Offer, Social Prescribing, HIV testing in Primary Care
 Make Every Contact Count (MECC)
 Programme management of HCC SMART Prevention

hertshealthevidence.org
PH.Intelligence@hertfordshire.gov.uk

Agenda Pack Page 63

13

Public Health Quarterly Report

Q1 2018/19

Service Summary: evidence and intelligence
 Discussions are being undertaken with partners to develop a local model for children's health and
wellbeing data collection and analysis which will replace the Health Related Behaviour Survey. The
proposed new model will deliver a more complete sample and more sophisticated analysis of results
to inform commissioning and local needs assessment work.
 Work is ongoing on a number of evaluations, including the Sport England-funded Active Ageing
project; the Public Health Partnership Fund (District Offer), social prescribing and an assistive
technology pilot.
 Work is underway on Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) reports on: Overweight and Obesity;
Oral Health; Autism Spectrum Disorder; and Mental Health & Wellbeing.
 A project to investigate cases of late diagnosis of HIV in the county and make recommendations for
how late diagnoses could be reduced is nearing completion.
 A Letchworth Garden City & Baldock health needs assessment (HNA) will be completed soon and
will inform the proposed development of a new primary care hub in Letchworth.
 The team are supporting the development of the Health & Wellbeing Board through the delivery of
a data-led prioritisation exercise.
 Work is underway to support improving data collection for a number of our PH services.
 Work is ongoing to shape the role of PH intelligence in the forthcoming Integrated Care System.

Service Summary: prevention, training & healthcare
Input to the Sustainable Transformation Partnership:
 Leadership of the STP Prevention Workstream (Jim McManus is the chair of this workstream).
 Key developments in Q1 include further roll-out of social prescribing in Hertfordshire and the
establishment of subgroups to develop a social marketing approach and also a robust evaluation of
the new social prescribing programme.
 The STP Prevention Workstream has also developed stronger links with the STP Frailty Workstream,
and agreement was reached that an STP funded consultant post would be recruited to in order to
scope out the 'personalisation work' for the STP, which will include self-management as an
important component.
 The STP Prevention Workstream is also part of a bid to the British Heart Foundation for funds to
support high blood pressure detection. A bid was submitted in Q4 and the group should hear if they
are successful during Q2.
Public Health Training:
 Hertfordshire continues to be a recognised training location for the East of England Public Health
Training Programme.
 There are currently three registrars based in the team, and a further three are expected to join
during Q2. The registrars support a range of projects within the department, for example
contributing to JSNA development and producing clinical policies for CCGs.

hertshealthevidence.org

AgendaPH.Intelligence@hertfordshire.gov.uk
Pack Page 64

14

APPENDIX 2

Agenda Pack Page 65

Public Health Quarterly Report
Q1 2018/19
David Conrad, Consultant in Public Health (Evidence & Intelligence)
PH.Intelligence@hertfordshire.gov.uk
August 2018

www.hertfordshire.gov.uk

Today we’ll look at…

Agenda Pack Page 66

• Selected key graphs from the latest PH
performance report
• Selected key graphs taking a closer look at
outcome indicators for the Starting Well
(maternity – 5 years) life stage

www.hertfordshire.gov.uk

Tier 2 adult weight management services
PH3: Adult Weight Management: uptake and % achieving 5% weight loss
PH3

Referrals

Completers achieving 5% weight loss

1600

100
90
80
70
60
50
40
30
20
10
0

1400

1000
800

%

Number

Agenda Pack Page 67

1200

600
400
200
0
2017/18 Q1 2017/18 Q2 2017/18 Q3 2017/18 Q4 2018/19 Q1 2018/19 Q2 2018/19 Q3

www.hertfordshire.gov.uk

Children’s healthy weight programme
PH6: Children's Healthy Weight: uptake and outcomes
Finishers

% Achieving nutritional impact

% Achieving exercise impact

160

100
90
80
70
60
50
40
30
20
10
0

140
120
100
80

%

Number

Agenda Pack Page 68

PH6

60
40
20
0
Group A
Group B - Group C - Group D - Group E Group F - Group G - Group H 10/14-03/15 04/15-08/15 09/15-02/16 02/16-07/16 09/16-02/17 03/17-07/17 09/17-01/18 04/18-07/18

www.hertfordshire.gov.uk

Smoking cessation service
PH4: Smoking Cessation: uptake and successful quits
PH4

Uptake

Completion

2500
2000
1500

%

Number

Agenda Pack Page 69

100
90
80
70
60
50
40
30
20
10
0

1000
500
0
2016/17
Q1

2016/17
Q2

www.hertfordshire.gov.uk

2016/17
Q3

2016/17
Q4

2017/18
Q1

2017/18
Q2

2017/18
Q3

2017/18
Q4

Drug and alcohol treatment services
PH8: Successful completion of drugs & alcohol treatment - alcohol, opiate, non-opiate
Alcohol

%

Agenda Pack Page 70

PH8

Opiate

Non-Opiate

100
90
80
70
60
50
40
30
20
10
0
2016/17 Q2 2016/17 Q3 2016/17 Q4 2017/18 Q1 2017/18 Q2 2017/18 Q3 2017/18 Q4 2017/18 Q1

www.hertfordshire.gov.uk

Starting Well – Smoking in pregnancy

Agenda Pack Page 71

www.hertfordshire.gov.uk

Starting Well – Smoking in pregnancy

Agenda Pack Page 72

www.hertfordshire.gov.uk

Starting Well – Excess weight (Reception)

Agenda Pack Page 73

www.hertfordshire.gov.uk

Starting Well – Excess weight (Reception)

Agenda Pack Page 74

www.hertfordshire.gov.uk

Starting Well – Child development

Agenda Pack Page 75

www.hertfordshire.gov.uk

Starting Well – Child development

Agenda Pack Page 76

www.hertfordshire.gov.uk

Further information

Public Health England’s data site:
Agenda Pack Page 77

fingertips.phe.org.uk

Our local health data site:
hertshealthevidence.org

www.hertfordshire.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

HERTFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Agenda Item No.

PUBLIC HEALTH AND PREVENTION
CABINET PANEL
6 SEPTEMBER 2018 AT 10.00 AM

5

OVERVIEW OF EMPLOYEE SICKNESS ABSENCE AND WELLBEING
Report of the Director of Resources
Author: - Caroline Butler, Head of HR Strategy, Reward and Development
Executive Members: - Ralph Sangster, Resources and Performance
1.

Purpose of report

1.1

Following discussions at a previous Public Health and Prevention Cabinet
panel HR have been asked to give an update to panel to inform them on
current employee sickness data and the activities being undertaken to
address this and support Hertfordshire County Council employee’s wellbeing.

2.

Summary

2.1

This is an information report. Discussion on employee absence, data and
actions in relation to these are undertaken with Resources and Performance
Cabinet Panel who have responsibility for such area.

3.

Recommendation/s

3.1

To note the content by way of information.

3.2

A report on this item of business will be considered by the Resources and
Performance Cabinet Panel at its meeting on 20 September as part of the
Annual Workforce Report process.

4.

Background

4.1

Sickness Summary as at Quarter 1 2018/19
The sickness data below is based upon a rolling year from 1 June 2017 to 31
May 2018, and is consistent with data reported via performance reporting in
Quarter 1 2018/19.

Agenda Pack Page 79

1

Average Days Absence (Table 1)
Average days’ sickness absence per employee has remained fairly static at
7.2/7.3 days over the past 12 months at Council Department level. This
compares favourably with the Chartered Institute of Personnel and
Development (CIPD) published average of 8.5 days across the Public Sector
(CIPD 2018), and research undertaken by Lancashire County Council
indicating an average of 9.79 days (data from 31 City, District and County
Councils). Table 1 also shows the variations by department. Across the
remaining 5 departments absence levels are below the 6.5 day target.
Table 1

Reasons for Absence
There are 23 sickness categories that absence is recorded against, and for
the year to May 2018 the top reason is Stress/Depression/Anxiety/Mental
Health which accounted for 21.1% of all sickness in the period. Absences
due to Muscular Skeletal complaints account for 20.7% of all absence. The
next highest category is Stomach/Digestive which accounts for 6.7% of
absence.
Length of Absences
Across Council Departments in the year to May 2018:




61.4% of completed absences were long term (20+ working days)
17.3% were medium term (6-20 days)
21.3% were short term (1-5 days)

Agenda Pack Page 80

2

Cost of Sickness Absence (Table 2)
For the year to May 2018, total cumulative sickness costs across Council
Departments were £4,940,222. This figure takes into account the first two
days of unpaid sickness plus on-costs of 28%. The average sick cost per
employee per year is £619, and the average sick cost per day lost is £84.
This is based upon 58,762 sickness days. The variation by department is
shown below.
Table 2
Headcount

Sickness Days
Lost for Rolling
Period

Total Cumulative
Sickness Costs

Adult Care Services

2,188

23,051.9

£1,606,399

£734

£70

2.6%

Children's Services

2,839

15,935

£1,490,000

£525

£94

1.7%

Community Protection

933

9,492.5

£1,164,418

£1,248

£123

3.6%

Environment & Infrastructure

477

2,605.5

£124,338

£261

£48

0.9%

Hertfordshire Business Services

144

1,178.5

£58,962

£409

£50

1.4%

Libraries

525

2,740.1

£136,211

£259

£50

1.5%

Public Health

69

161.0

£25,327

£367

£157

0.8%

Resources

804

3,597.0

£334,569

£416

£93

1.0%

7,979

58,762

£4,940,222

£619

£84

2.0%

Organizational Unit

Council Departments Total

4.2

Ave Sick Cost per Ave Sick Cost per % sick Cost of Cum.
Employee
Day Lost
Actual Sal costs

Prevention of Sickness Absence and enhance Employee Wellbeing

4.2.1 County Council employees work hard to look after the needs of those living
within Hertfordshire and it is important to look after their needs too. To support
this in 2013, an affordable, in-house health and wellbeing brand ‘Healthy
Herts’ was introduced. Healthy Herts is a part of Herts Rewards (the County
Council’s employee benefits package), and is used to promote all of the
County Council’s health and wellbeing benefits. The objectives are to boost
employee engagement, retention and performance, as well as improving the
health, wellbeing and resilience of the workforce. The Herts Rewards
SmartHub® portal is used as a means to promote all wellbeing benefits and
keep the entire employee reward package in one accessible central location.
Over the last 18 months the wellbeing pages have received over 6,000 visits
from employees.
4.2.2 Healthy Herts is funded by re-investing savings from salary sacrifice schemes
and working with private sector companies to achieve sponsorship for
employee events. The focus has been to deliver high impact, employee led
initiatives at low cost and working closely with Public Health colleagues to
ensure County Council employees can benefit from their health expertise and

Agenda Pack Page 81

3

initiatives. An example of this is recruitment of 35 Health and Wellbeing
Champions who are fully trained in a variety of health wellbeing aspects to
support us enhance employee wellbeing.
4.2.3 A range of health benefits including competitive discounts for gym
memberships at over 20 local gyms, onsite exercise classes for employees
including Yoga, Pilates, Boxercise, Legs Bums & Tums, massages and
regular onsite mini health MOTs. ‘Mid-day Mile Walk’, is another initiative that
is promoted. This involves groups of employees going for a mile walk in their
lunch break instead of sitting in the staff restaurant or at their desks.
4.2.4 Employees have access to a Cycle to work scheme which is both a financial
and wellbeing benefit (over 130 bikes were purchased through this scheme
last year), along with ‘pool bikes’ available to hire out either for employees’
commute or a ride at lunch time. Shower and changing facilities at the main
work bases have been upgraded so as to facilitate employees exercising in
their lunch break or taking the opportunity to cycle or run to work.
4.2.5 In response to the last staff survey and analysis of employee sickness
absence during 2017/18 the County Council has increased the focus on
Mental Health and in 2017 online learning health courses for employees were
introduced, including how to manage work pressures and mental health. First
aiders have been trained in mental health first aid. Employees have access to
targeted events and communications throughout the year such as Employee
Mental Health Stories, including case studies on the Intranet, alongside stress
events to encourage inclusion and open conversations which aim to raise
awareness and increase employee engagement. Employees are able to
access expert advice through our Employee Assistance Programme called
‘Carewell’. This service is available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week, online or
on the phone. To support these initiatives, ‘Confidential Advisors’ – trained
staff volunteers are available to provide employees with confidential support if
the employee considers that they have been harassed and/or bullied. The
Council’s flexible working policy allows employees to work smarter not longer
and is part of the wider SmartWorking initiative. Affinity provide free financial
advice to employees and there are a number of employee support groups and
a choir.
4.2.6 All these wellbeing benefits are promoted through the Herts Rewards portal,
which allows information to be updated easily through SmartHub® and
through weekly and monthly newsletter articles which promote mental and
physical health alongside work life balance, and also on the intranet.
4.2.7 Herts Rewards have run various events this year including ‘Feel Good Feb
roadshows’, mini health MOTs, cancer awareness stalls, mental health

Agenda Pack Page 82

4

training, onsite HIV testing, and as part of National Walking Month in May
2018 a ‘mass health walk’ was organised where a large group of employees
all got together for a lunch time walk. All of these events were extremely well
attended and received; the events for which employees had to book a slot
were always fully booked. The Council’s health champions also get involved
with these events. The feedback from these events is extremely positive and
emphasises that employees appreciate the offering which is provided to them.
4.3

Reactive Activity
Alongside the preventative work being undertaken on employee wellbeing,
HR regularly analyse sickness absence data. This enables the employee
relations case work team to proactively approach areas of the organisation
with higher levels of absence or long term sickness, to support managers and
work with Occupational Health to assist the employee back into the workplace
and to review processes and procedures in those services.

4.4

What next?
HR officers will continue to work closely with managers and employees to
ensure health and wellbeing is high up on the agenda. The initiatives outlined
above will continue and be strengthened to ensure our offer is relevant to the
changing needs of the workforce.

5.

Equality Impact Assessment

5.1

When considering proposals placed before Members it is important that they
are fully aware of, and have themselves rigorously considered the equalities
implications of the decision that they are taking.

5.2

Rigorous consideration will ensure that proper appreciation of any potential
impact of that decision on the County Council’s statutory obligations under the
Public Sector Equality Duty. As a minimum this requires decision makers to
read and carefully consider the content of any Equalities Impact Assessment
(EqIA) produced by officers.

5.3

The Equality Act 2010 requires the Council when exercising its functions to
have due regard to the need to (a) eliminate discrimination, harassment,
victimisation and other conduct prohibited under the Act; (b) advance equality
of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic
and persons who do not share it and (c) foster good relations between
persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do
not share it. The protected characteristics under the Equality Act 2010 are
age; disability; gender reassignment; marriage and civil partnership;
pregnancy and maternity; race; religion and belief, sex and sexual orientation.

Agenda Pack Page 83

5

5.4

This report is for information purposes. Separate EqIAs are undertaken in
relation to this matter with regards to Policy and Interventions as relevant.

6.

Financial Implications
No additional financial resources are being sought as result of this report.

Appendix
Example of Employee Wellbeing Promotional material:

Agenda Pack Page 84

6

Agenda Pack Page 85

7

This page is intentionally left blank

Health risk behaviours
Agenda Pack Page 87

Sue Matthews
Consultant in Public Health

www.hertfordshire.gov.uk

What are Health Risk Behaviours?
• Behaviours which ‘potentially expose people to
Agenda Pack Page 88

harm, or significant risk of harm which will
prevent them reaching their potential, or
damage their health and wellbeing’

• Sharp increase in risk taking behaviours during
adolescence and wellbeing

www.hertfordshire.gov.uk

National trends
• Slow and steady decline in risk behaviours in the
last 10 years. For example:

– Smoking (15 year olds) 20% - 7% (2006-2016)
Agenda Pack Page 89

– Alcohol consumption (11-15 year olds) 19%-5%
(2003-2013)
– Teenage pregnancy rates lowest since records
began (1969)

• Unclear if these trends applies to vulnerable groups
of young people

www.hertfordshire.gov.uk

Hertfordshire
• Hertfordshire health behaviour trends are
Agenda Pack Page 90

generally similar to or better than the national
average

• Examples of where the survey is used:
• Shared with schools to support curriculum
development
• Inform and monitor service delivery e.g. review
of the Hertfordshire condom scheme and
development of self harm toolkit for schools
www.hertfordshire.gov.uk

Public health approach
• Collaborative approach
• Focus on prevention through promoting positive
Agenda Pack Page 91

mental health and building coping strategies
and resilience

• Promote consistent and clear messages for
schools and other young people focused
agencies, which apply to all risk behaviours

• Close alliances with services for young peoples
to promote early detection and minimise harm

www.hertfordshire.gov.uk

Key messages
• Need to work as a multi-partner system to
Agenda Pack Page 92

reduce, prevent and respond to health risk
behaviours.

• Public Health and Children’s Services are

undertaking a joint piece of work to map services
and priorities relating to health for young people
(including health risk behaviours) to support
wider system wide development and
collaborative working.

www.hertfordshire.gov.uk

Agenda Pack Page 93

thank you
www.hertfordshire.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

